CITY OF

R

AGENDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
DECEMBER 16, 2014 @ 5:00 P.M.

Notice is hereby given the City Council for the City of Parker will meet in a Regular Meeting
on Tuesday, December 16, 2014 at 5:00 P.M. at the Parker City Hall, 5700 E. Parker Road,

Parker, Texas 75002.

CALL TO ORDER - Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum

EXECUTIVE SESSION 5:00 P.M. TO 7:00 P.M. — Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas

Government Code the City Council may hold a closed meeting.

1. RECESS TO CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
AUTHORITY CONTAINED IN:

a. Government Code Section 551.074 Personnel—Review of individual staff member’s
roles, to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, compensation,
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee- All City
employees and officers of the City.

b. Government Code Section 551.087 Economic development--(1) to discuss or
deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body
has received from Geneva Partners, Ltd. (approximately 131 acres) and Travis
Parker Associates, Ltd. (approximately 322 acres) proposing an economic
development proposal for property in Parker, and in its ETJ. and/or to deliberate a
financial or other incentive requested for the development by the developer.

c. Government Code Section 551.071. Consultation with city attorney and Government
Code Section 551.072 Deliberation regarding Real Property.  Confidential legal
advice and deliberation regarding the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real
property for acquisition and use for City right of way, and/or public utility
construction.

2. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING.

5700 EAST PARKER ROAD e  PARKER, TEXAS 75002
(972) 442-6811 . 972-442-2894 FAX . WWW.PARKERTEXAS.US



3. ANY APPROPRIATE DELIBERATION AND/OR ACTION ON ANY OF THE
EXECUTIVE SESSION SUBJECTS LISTED ABOVE.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

AMERICAN PLEDGE: | pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America; and
to the republic for which it stands, one nation under God, indivisible with liberty and justice
for all.

TEXAS PLEDGE: Honor the Texas flag; | pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state
under God, one and indivisible.

PUBLIC COMMENTS The City Council invites any person with business before the Council to speak. No
formal action may be taken on these items at this meeting. Please keep comments to 3 minutes.

CONSENT AGENDA Routine Council business. Consent Agenda is approved by a single majority vote. Items
may be removed for open discussion by a request from a Councilmember or member of staff.

4. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FOR DECEMBER 2, 2014. [SMITH]

5. DEPARTMENT REPORTS - ANIMAL CONTROL, POLICE, COURT, BUILDING,
WEBSITE

INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION ITEMS

6. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON ANNUAL AUDIT
REPORT. [BOYD]

7. PUBLIC HEARING, CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON
ORDINANCE 721 AMENDING THE CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. [FLANIGAN]

8. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON RESOLUTION 2014-
466 APPROVING THE ANNEXATION REQUEST AND SCHEDULE OF PUBLIC
HEARINGS FOR KINGS CROSSING PHASE 2 BEING 56 ACRES IN THE ANN S.
HURT SURVEY, GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF LEWIS LANE. [SHEPHERD]

ROUTINE ITEMS

9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

10.ADJOURN

In addition to any specifically identified Executive Sessions, Council may convene into Executive Session at any
point during the open meeting to discuss any item posted on this Agenda. The Open Meetings Act provides
specific exceptions that require that a meeting be open. Should Council elect to convene into Executive Session,
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those exceptions will be specifically identified and announced. Any subsequent action, as a result of this Executive
Session, will be taken and recorded in open session.

| certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on or before December 12, 2014 by 5:00 p.m. at the Parker City Hall.

Date Notice Removed Carrie L. Smith, TRMC
City Secretary

The Parker City Hall is Wheelchair accessible. Sign interpretations or other special assistance for disabled
attendees must be requested 48 hours in advance by contacting the City Secretary’s Office at 972-442-6811.
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MINUTES
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

DECEMBER 2, 2014

CALL TO ORDER — Roll Call and Determination of a Quorun:1

The Parker City Council met in a regular meeting on the above date at Parker City Hall,
5700 E. Parker Road, Parker, Texas 75002.

Mayor Marshall called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Councilmembers Stone,
Standridge, Levine, Pettle and Taylor were present.

Staff Present: City Administrator Jeff Flanigan, City Secretary Carrie Smith and Fire Chief
Mike Sheff -

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

AMERICAN PLEDGE: Mayor Pro Tem Levine led the pledge.

TEXAS PLEDGE: City Attorney Jim Shepherd led the pledge.

Mayor Marshall held a moment of silence for longtime resident Randy Nicholson who
passed away.

PUBLIC COMMENTS The City Council invites any person with business before the Coupc!il to speak. No
formal action may be taken on these items at this meeting. Please keep comments to 3 minute?'r.

» Greg A. Roemer, President of Community Waste Disposal, 2010 California

Crossing, Dallas, Texas 75220 - Mr. Roemer presented Council with a brochure for
CWD waste disposal services.

» Scott Jefferies, 4600 Sycamore Lane - Mr. Jefferies opposes the annual renewal
requirement for Specific Use Permits for accessory dwellings.

Mayor Marshall moved to agenda ltem 11.

11.RECESS TO CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
AUTHORITY CONTAINED IN:

a. Government Code Section 551.074 Personnel—Review of individual staff
member’s roles, to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation,
compensation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or
employee- All City employees and officers of the City.

Mayor Marshall recessed the regular meeting at 7:08 p.m.



12.RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING.
Mayor Marshall left the meeting after the executive session.
Mayor Pro Tem Levine reconvened the regular meeting at 7:28 p.m.

13.ANY APPROPRIATE DELIBERATION AND/OR ACTION ON ANY OF THE
EXECUTIVE SESSION SUBJECTS LISTED ABOVE.

No action was taken from the executive session.

CONSENT AGENDA Routine Council business. Gonsent Agenda is approved by a single majority vote,
ltems may be removed for open discussion by a request from a Councilmember or member of staf?.

1. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FOR NOVEMBER 18, 2014. [SMITH]

Amendment on Page 4, last paragraph strike - “Mayor Pro Tem Pettle” and insert
“Councilmember Pettle...”

2. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON ORDINANCE 717
ADOPTING THE $-8 CODIFICATION SUPPLEMENT. [SHEPHERD]

3. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON RESOLUTION
2014-465 APPOINTING THE 2014-2015 PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION.
[FLANIGAN]

Amendment to Section 2 and Section 3 - Strike - “are hereby” and Insert - "were
previously”

MOTION: Councilmember Taylor moved to approve the consent agenda with
amendments noted. Councilmember Pettle seconded with Councilmembers Stone,
Standridge, Levine, Pettle and Taylor voting for. Motion carried 5-0

INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION ITEMS

4. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON RESOLUTION
2014-464 APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FOR THE PROVISION OF BACKUP
PARAMEDIC AMBULANCE SERVICE BY THE CITY OF WYLIE, TEXAS.
[SHEPHERD/SHEFF]

City Attorney Shepherd noted Article 5.1 and 5.2 of the original agreement was
amended.

CC Minutes 2
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MOTION: Councilmember Pettle moved to approve Resolution 2014-464 as
presented. Councilmember Standridge seconded with Councilmembers Stone,
Standridge, Levine, Pettle and Taylor voting for. Motion carried 5-0.

5. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON ORDINANCE 718
APPROVING A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH GRAYSON COLLIN ELEGTRIC
COOP (GCEC). [SHEPHERD]

This item was tabled to allow GCEC’s legal counsel an opportunity to review the
proposed changes to the agreement.

6. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON ORDINANCE 719
APPROVING A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH ONCOR ELECTRIC
COMPANY. [SHEPHERD]

This item was tabled to aliow Oncor’s legal counsel an opportunity to review the
proposed changes to the agreement.

7. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON ORDINANCE 720
APPROVING NEW WATER RATES. [FLANIGAN]

The current water rate ordinance would be modified by adding Section 2 Residential
Mobile Home Rate, Section 3 Construction Water Rate and Section 6 Surcharge
Rate.

MOTION: Councilmember Stone moved to table this item. Counciimember Pettle
seconded with Councilmembers Stone, Standridge, Levine, Pettle and Taylor voting
for. Motion carried 5-0.

8. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON CODE
COMPLIANCE IN THE CITY. [PETTLE]

Janice Struck, 6701 Poco Estados - Ms. Struck read her statement below to
Council:

December 2, 2014

I am Janice Struck living at 6701 Poco Estados, Parker Texas. | would like to address
the Collection of Brush and Bulky items.

It was a positive when we were able to have the service. It began as every other
month then went fo monthly. | knew this would be problem unless the enforcement
was performed. The seven day set out time before the third Thursday is plenty of
time.

New residents to Parker are so glad to be "in the country” leading to the belief we do
not have ordinances. The first key is the City of Parker should inform the new residents
of the Ordinances/Regulations. This could be done when they come to City Hall to

CC Minutes 3
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complete the move to Parker. The Enforcement of the Bulk pickup regulation is the
second key. Residents should receive a warning then the fine.

As a resident we have received the information about the bulk pickup ordinances in
written form and emall and many reminders. Claiming ignorance of the law/ordinances
does not give the residents a free ride. When residents violate the Bulk Pick-up
ordinances month after month then others follow their lead. Several residents in m Y
subdivision and across the city have bulk pick-up out way before the seven day fime
period. Some start their bulk pick-up pile the evening of or the next day after bulk
pickup. This has gone on month after month after month. There are residents who are
hard to deal with but the Bulk Pick-up ordinances need to be enforced.

The City schedules extra pick up when we have storms or the ice we had last
winter.

{ came tonight hoping something will be done fo solve this across the city. |
peak to neighbors and the atlitude is Why bother "They" will not do anything.
If the City of Parker is not willing fo enforce the ordinances then why have the
ordinances?

I enjoy living in Parker and watched it grow from a small city to where it is today. | want
the neighborhoods to be inviting and not littered all the time.

John Chisolm, 2905 Dublin Road - Mr. Chisolm requested brush be removed from
the 7-day requirement for bulk trash. Falling branches and trees cannot be
prevented and must be cleaned up.

MOTION: Councilmember Standridge moved to have the Code Review
subcommittee work with City Attorney Shepherd and City Administrator Flanigan on
the issues with bulk trash and high grass. Councilmember Pettle seconded with
Councilmembers Stone, Standridge, Levine, Pettle and Taylor voting for. Motion
carried 5-0.

9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

s GCEC and Oncor Franchise Agreements
s Water Rate amendment
s Landscape agreement with TxDOT on FM 2551

10.UPDATES

None

EXECUTIVE SESSION - Pltllrsuant to the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code the City

Council may hold a closed meeting.

CC Minutes 4
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Executive Session was moved to the beginning of the meeting after public
comments.

14.ADJOURN

Mayor Pro Tem Levine adjourned the meeting at 8:19 pm.

APPROVED:

Mayor Z Marshall

ATTESTED:

APPROVED on the day
City Secretary Carrie L. Smith of , 2014,
CC Minutes
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ANIMAL CONTROL REPORT

NOVEMBER 2014
| —_—
i Caller i =
Call# Date:] 1132014 | _ o OPOSSUM IN A TRAP.VG Fiscal Year Budget = $10,000
i Remarks:
Involce , T Expected | Fiscal Year Charges
1 | Service Fes Only $50.00 A
| Typer | Charge: o Octoher = 300.00
Call Type Action Taken By: Response Disposition November = 477.05
I'Trap | Murphy Animal Control | Murphy Pick U December =
i Animal Trap urphy Animal Cantrol urphy Pick Up Relocated -
S i o IR January =
! | Caller  |OPPOSSUM IN A TRAP RIGHT OF February =
Call # | Date: 11/5/2014 J Remarks: | DRIVEWAY NEAR SHED VG March =
-------- e e April =
2 | Invoiee o vice Fee Only Expected $50.00 h'; -
Type: | T _ Charge: | ay=
Call Type Action Taken By: Response ! Disposition June:
e T~ 2= W e e IS — Ju!y:
Animal Tra Murphy Animal Control | Murphy Pick U l Relocated I -
n p phy phy p | e J Aligust_
1 Caller !GERMAN SHEPHERD RAL O-N_ ] Septem ber=
i i
Call # Date:, 11/5/2014 Remarks: iDUBLIN RD AT S GURVE VG Tota|= $777.05
3 inveice & Service Fee Only anectsd $50.00
Type: | - .| Charge:
| Call Type Action Taken By: Response Disposition
L i ai i
4 g No Animal :
| Stray Murphy Animal Control Foun d N/A ‘
cars] ow] s | L oo st
. Remarks: 'SlDE OF HOUSE.VG
a Invoice ’ Service Fee Expected $50.00
| | Type: | Onb _Charge: .
Call Type l Action Taken By- Response Disposition
Animal Trap ; Murphy Animal Control Murphy Pick Up Relocated
Caller | LOST WHITE MALTESE-MALE,
Call # Date:| 11/10/2014 Remarks: |DEAF AND BLIND.VG
|
5 Invoice No Charge Expected $0.00
Type: Charge:
I
Call Type | Action Taken By: Response Disposition
Lost Animal No Action No Action N/A
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ANIMAL CONTROL REPORT

NOVEMBER 2014
can 2 DOGS KEEP GETTING OUT OF |
aller FENCE. PUT BACK SEVERAL
Call # Date:| 11/14/2014 Remarks: | TIMES. MURPHY WILL GO
OUT. VG
g | Imvoice Service Fee Only Expected $50.00
Type: Charge:
Gall Type Action Taken By: Response Disposition
e o1 Retumed to Owner-
Stray Murphy Animal Contrel | Murphy Pick Up ‘I No ticket
Caller  [SON BIT BY A MOUSE. DOES IT
Call # Date:| 11/20/2014 Remarks: |NEED TO BE TESTED?VG
- . I
- Invoice Fee Exception ] Expected ! §77.05
Type: . Charge: |
H |
| Call Type ! Action Taken By: Response Disposition
Other Murphy Animal Control 1 Murphy Pick Up ‘ Dther !
T
‘' caller |LOST: FEMALE WHITE |
Call # Date:| 11/21/2014 . |AUSTRALIAN SHEPHERD MIX I
| Remarks: \AMED "STEVIE".
. By
g | volee No Charge Expected $0.00
Type! - e Charge: ==
Call Type Action Taken By: Response Disposition
Lost Animal City Personnel Other N/A
o Caller |OPOSSUM IN A TRAPNEXTTO |
Call # Date:! 11/24/2014 ; Remarks: |[FRONT DRIVEWAY.VG
g | Imvoice Service Fee Only | Expected | $50.00
Type: i _Charge: | =
Call Type Action Taken By: | Response Disposition
S R i
Animal Trap | Murphy Animal Control | Murphy Pick Up Relocated
| |
Call 2 DOGS KEEP GETTING OUT OF
aller FENCE. PUT BACK SEVERAL
Gall # Date:! 11/24/2014 | Remarks: TIMES. MURPHY WILL GO
l’ QUT.VG
N T IR
19 | Invoice Service Fee Only | Expected $50.00
Type: .. LCharge: =
Call Type Action Taken By: | Response | Disposition
i |
] ; -
Stray Murphy Animal Control  Murphy Pick Up Retumned to Owner
| | Ticket
Call#|  Date: 11/24/2014 Caller i UNK IN A TRAP.VG
1 iEveics Service Fee Only Expected $50.00
Type: Charge:
Call Type Action Taken By: Response Disposition
Animal Trap | Murphy Animal Control | Murphy Pick Up Destroyed

TOTAL=

$477.05
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_ & After Driver Safety Course  (CCF, Art. 45.0511)

Date: 12/01/2014
Time: 09:25:47 CR|MINAL SECTION
Court City of Parker TRAFFIC MISDEMEANORS NON-TRAFFIC MISDEMEANORS
Non- Cl
— - L Parking Pariing Drdlnt:noe Poenal Code Oﬂl::ftnl:a Ordtl:llliaynce
1, Total Cases Fending First of Month: 1,339 5 0 22 441 13
a. Active Cases 894 4 0 5 212 7
b. Inactive Cases 445 1 0| 17 229 6
2, New Casas Filed 33 0 "I 1 4 "
3. Cases Reactivated 1 0 0' 0 0 0
4, All Dther Cases Added 0 0 ol 0 0 0
5. Total Cases on Docket  (Sew ofLines In, 2, 3 & 4} 4l 6 o
6. Dispositions Prior to Court Appearance or Trial;
a. Uncontested Dispositions
{Disposed without appearance before & fudge (COP Art. 27.14))

b. Dismissed by Prosecution

7. Dispositions at Trial:
a. Convictions
1) Guilty Plea or Nolo Contendere

2) By the Court

3) By the Jury

b. Acquittals:
1) By the Court

2) By the Jury

¢. Dismissed by Prosscution

8. Compllance Dismissals:

b. Aftor Deferved Disposition (CCP, 4. 43.051)

0 0 0 ¢ b
c. After Teen Court (CCP, A1, 45.052) ¢ ] U 0 0 0
d. After Tobacco Awaroness Course (H5C, Sec. 161,253) 0
. Aftar Traatmeont for Chemiical Dependancy (OGP, At 45.053) 0 P
f. After Proof of Financial Respongibility (70 Sec. 607.793) 5
g- All Other Transpartation Code Dismissals ] 0 0 0 0
9. All Other Dispositions 0 0 0 0 0
10. Total Cases Disposed  (Sam of Linex 67,8 & 9) 19 0 0o 0 5 0
11. Cases Placed on Inactive Status 1 0 q 0 0 "
12. Total Cases Pending End of Month: 1,353 5 0| 23 440 15
8. Active Cases (Egusls Lint 5 minss the saoy of Lines 10 & 11) 908 4 0| 6 211 9
b. Inactive Casas (Equalr Line 1b sirux Line 3 plus Line 11) 1 229 6
13. Show Cause Hearings Held —
14. Cases Appaaled:
a. After Trial 0 ] of 0| 0 0.
b. Without Trial 0 0 0| 0 0 0
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Court City of Parker NUMBER
Month 11 Year 2014 NUMBER GIVEN mggEuirssELFOR
1. Magistrate Warnings:
4. Class C Misdemeanors ‘.
b. Class A and B Misdemeanors 0 o
o. Felonles o - i
TOTAL
2. Arrest Warrants |ssued:
8. Class C Misdemeanors 1
b. Clags A and B Misdemeanors 0
c. Felonies 0
3, Caplases Pro Fine Issuad 0
4. Search Warrants [ssued 0
5. Warrants for Fire, Health and Code Inspections Filed  ocp, 4w, 1205 0
8. Examining Trials Conducted 0
7. Emergency Mantal Health Hearings Held 0
8. Magjistrate’s Orders for Emergency Protaction |ssued 0
9. Magistrate's Orders Ignition Interiock Device lssued fCCP, Art. 17.441) 0
10. All Other Magistrate’s Orders Issued Requiring Conditions for Release on Bond 0
11. Driver's License Denlal, Revocation or Suspension Hearings Held {TC, Sec. 521.380) 0
12. Disposition of Stolen Property Hearings Held (CCP, Ch, 47) 0
13. Peace Bond Hearings Held o
14. Gages in Which Fine and Court Coste Satiafiad by Community Service:
a. Partial Satisfacton 0
b. Full Satisfaction 0
15. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satlsfled by Jail Cradit 0
16, Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Walved for Indigency 0
17. Amount of Fines and Court Costs Walved for Indigency : g 0.00
18. Fines, Court Costs and Other Amounts Collected:
a. Retalned by City $ 1,61530
b. Remitted to State $ 1,033.00
) W

c. Total $ 2,648.30




CARKER

BUILDING PERMIT TOTALS

Nov-14

ACCESSORY/OUTBUILDING PERMITS 3
IRRIGATION/LAWN SPRINKLER PERMITS 1
MISCELLANEOUS PERMITS 3
SWIMMING POOL PERMITS 5
REMODEL/ADDITION PERMITS 0
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL PERMITS 3

INSPECTIONS

86




2l €4l 1Ll LLL B0l a-1-A|
£l 9 L laqueydeg
Zi €l gl ey
ol 2L ol Anr
[1 [} gl aunp
9 ol £h Aejy
Ll 13 3] |udy|
Sl Ll oL Yol
2 9 14 Alerugedq
8 6 Aenuep
i g g Jagquisnag]

8 Ll L ol JaquiaAoN

oL [ oL L 1869300
SL0ZF10Z PLOZ-ELOZ eloz-ZzLoz. | ZLoZ-LlozZ Jea [edsty

ST0Z-¢TOZ B

PIOZ-ETOC®

ET0Z-ZI02™
Z10Z-TI0ZH

L

9

$
o
o
T~
=

4} Jaquadag
1enbmy
Al

aunp

Aep

Indv)
yosep|
Alenigad
Aenuep
lequisoag
} JaquIBAcN

S :] Z 8GO0
SL02-R10Z FLOZ-€ 102 E102-Z10Z ZLoZ-LLO0E desy, (8Osl
SI|Mi6g JopuLdg UmejuoneB)

STOT-rioe ™

FTOZ-ETOZ W

ET0Z-ZTOZ W

ZroZ-11028

oln|w|N|jo|wlm || |ofo
Oft-|r|a|—]c|onlm|ol|n
g | === =]

-

02 Ll 12101 a-1-A|
ragusdag]
yenbmy
A

aunp|

ABlN |

1dy|
yosey|
Aenigay
Arenuep|
Jaquaas(
£ JaduiaAon
£ } 3 3 1240120

SHullod mc_—u__sna.:nu\?_nummwuvu/.\ Giozvi0e. | vI0z<r0 | eibeeroe| zioziioz oA

]

o0
=

™
-

STOZ-PIOT &
YIOZ-ET0TE

£T0Z-ZT0C M

Z102-TI0Z ™

(=0 Eal o'l Rl B 8 ol ol Rl Bl Rl R
o|l-|Q|v NN |DBID|N|O
Ll Bl =4 A E=d Rl el Bl =D |

SHAVHO 1iNd4d



o]
o™

Bl Q-1-A
Bqusdes
Jendny
Anr

eunp

A

iHdy
yauep
Aengsay
fenuer
JoquIeseg
€ Jequianop]

z [ 18qo130
$10Z2-k10Z ¥L0ZELOT SLOTZL0Z Zi0e-i 102 1B&A paslH
Sjiliziog BUIping [eRUepISey Aljwies ojBulS|

STOZ-PTOT

tTOZ-eTO0Zm

ET0ZZT0Z
Z10Z-7T07m

bl bl M B = A R A L R K=

i B R (0 1 1 43 1 1 1 28 BN -4
il 8 L Rl e ] TG 1 Rl 5 ) o

b 14 gl 8 el d-1-A
Jaqualdeg
jEnby
Anr

aung

T

(Ldy
e
Alenigaq
Aenuep|
Jaquisoeq
[+ 13gqWISACH

3 < [ Z lsgopg)
Sl0g-kl0e | ¥10ZE10Z ELOZ-ZLOZ ZL0Z-1 102 29, [2osld

=

ST0Z-rI02 ™ .

YIOC-ETOZ M

£T0Z-2T02 0

= ]
TI02-TIOZ 4 -1 gy

~jejo|r~|m|n|n]|~lofe|~
Qolo|laloiNn]r~|o|alm|~

olo|Nle=|m|e=|~|2]~|C

0L Q-1-A
Jaqluaidss
1enBmy
A

sunp

Aep

Judy
FHep
Asrugsq
Aenugr
Jsquianag
S JoquisAaN
9 8 o g 1840pQ
SHWLIad |00d Sujlwims EI024102_ | viozevoz | £10z2i0z | Zioz-iioz N

SHdVYO 1INY3d

(=]
[
o~
o]
0
=

2

STOT-+¥T0Z ™
PIOZ-ET0Z B

£T0Z-ZT0Z W
ZT0Z-TT0T W

MmN | |N|JO | NN

Ll B Rl Bl Bt B Kl Rl el e 8 1
NIQ|OIN NS |~ ]| —

arTmi ey e




dDvd JO ALID

000°9% 000't$ TRO'ELLZS =§VIOL
[000Z8  [0004% [LE] [ SONIGISTH MAN S3WOH aNvED| u0 dN3a 153604 5051 BAS|PI0EIZIE T |vEOBPIOT
[000'ZE GOC'15 [ COBTIEE SON30I53d MaN SINOH ANYHO U NO1Z10qIR 108S OIS ([PIDE/E/ L |ES08viee
(60028 0001 058 foooo0e% SONIAISTE MIN EELFEERL] N HOOHBHIAD 0088|949 |PIOZEHIL  [CE0evi0E |
o5 ] VN [o000FS 664 51004 AT10d U0 SJUOHIGNIAYY 2055|  100d|PIOZNE/LL  [BZ00LFL0Z |
[ [ VN DOOSER 1004 ORI §100d BN UG NOGNany 1088|1004 [PIOZ/LZIV] [LS00IPL0E |

05 VN 000 0CF 100d S100d Tvad3In 0109 T ISUNHNGAYH 6019|100 [Fie2/elrl |9e00IFIoE
3 o VN 0000S% 700d S100d WOLSND d3Hd0ISEHD W Yd HOOUGHIN0 2068|  100d |FIO/LEITE  |5200FPH0E
of 0% vN GO0 700d §100d WGLSND YanJOLSiHS | N0 HOONGESAG 0Is|  10od[FlD2erL  [FRO0LFi0E |
0% oF WN YN SUILVIH HALvAN SNIOANId NIDINYES MNGTNGE| 90 J90NI0aid 6005  WNd|FIOZ8LTE  [GROLPIOE |
[ i3 VN YN HALVIH J3LVAR SNIGNN 1d 1SV 1OV I TJHOALSNIAYS covs|  WNTd [FLOZFMTT  [[P0LPLOT
CER VN WN HALVaH J3LVM 6VO OGN 1d LS3M AJAEVH SO 83003 FOLP|  WNId|FIOCONTE  [9v0IPkoe |
o5 m i N SUALVIH WLV VD SHIHLOYE UINVE AIOE3aIN0d FOSF| W Id [PIOZ/STFE
[ i R N SHILVAH 831vM oML T TONENN I 10345084 ONISSOUD AVAYNNNG 0065|  WNTI|PROZENE  [FROZFIDE
3 [%3 YN N SWILEAS AT 140D T IVIH 7 HIV 1101 WA STIONA ONITIOY FOLY PEOSFIOE
& |08 N [ NOLLYORIal NSIS30 ¥ 3d¥080NY 1 SHALHDIIINH| “HLTO0vS F08T [ovovkLOE |

0% YN ¥N I PINIEAS Taid - Woo g3 W0 ONDd 153904 L062|  Hdad{vioa/tetl [alierioe |
[ 0% VN N5 EREE HINTJO T 2000 FOVEYS ONY 1d | U0 NI 10 MOUVaN 00PL|  JONIAIPI0EEINE  |LEDBPLOZ |
[ [ js 00053 E=a i ER[EIICT] FER] 10 MGTIOH 1507 eooF OV [FIOTIEL | FE0LPIOE
(13 ® OFELIS 08E 00G ZFS VauV ONIN 900aLN0o §100d A3 104 FNd FDAEHLNOS 20F8 OOV |PLOZICHLE  |0ZOFPIOC
(0% [ 000528 |GEL 005 £L5 SUNLONULS 1004 Hvad| S3[H38 WNNLLY 1d o0 NOanany 0ogs SOV |rLOZiEb/kd  |BIOLPLOE

334 FIVL00d
vaian Leodaa | L Svnos U NOILdRIDS3a HOLOVHINOD ssauaav aaL| SA¥E | EENON
¥i0Z 439W3IAON
207 LIWH3d



! S8l YL [PLOZ/0EIH) AT Aefng uoog 48 H0 ONZE 1STU0L 905L[vE0s 102
T 3] AL |vLOZIZLTE VIO Siod-L g 90 ON3A 1S3904 906/ [FE06-7102
1 S5 3NAL  |vI0e/e/ ) ¥I0Z/ErL ) UoNEpunG 48 N7 ALVISS €055 0806~ 10T
z S8l VHOLLL QTVE| 3Nl [vL0erzlbl vlozioLiT UojEpUNag B 0 SOAYLES 09| 8206-7102
L ToNId gL [FLoesiL FLOZ/61LL 1eui] BUpIng|  qoW=d QON38 NVD3d e0yF|8L008-FL0E
L TYNIS INdL [¢IOZAALL [ ubnoy [BdBeE|  aoway ONSg NvJ3d 80pF|2H00BFH0Z
L VNI el [PLOebL FLOZRILL Buweld| aowad QN38 NvO3d ROV |B100B-710Z
T NI OlLvd] aJndl  |vloziert VIOZENL L [EUd BUPING| dOW3d NT31vY153 0025 Fi00EvI0g
) SSI| FONVHI OAS WORILOZ 13| 3ndl | viGewiis FLOZIFIVH N0 doW3d N1 ¥SI13 00010087102
i 58I ShaL |FLOZ/EWEE ¥L02iEHLL ~ BuliEd]  gonad NTVSI13 0075|01008-7102
3 g3l 3L |FLOZEHIL ¥LOZ/BI1L UEnoY [eaueysel|  qonad N1 vS3 00%S[01002F102
I SSI IhdL | vLOZ/RHLF FLOZ/BL/LL UBnoy [EoBa3| QoW N1 ¥SIT3 00¥S|01008F102
z 551 ¥LBLLLAIWYA] Il [vL0e/0erlL FlLoZRLIT S 0} SUTSED| 100d| AWDId IDUIHHLNDS 20L8|e200iFLoe
A 53] ¥iBLLL QTTVE] AndL  |PLOZOZIEL FLOZ/BLLE J8JESH [00d 00U 585 100d| ANDId IDUIMHLNOS Z018|£200LF108
2 5] ML |FIOEEL FLOZELL BRiS Aled|  T100d| AW IDQIEHLNOS 2019(€200L-F1H0G
! s3I AL [PLOZIGLE FIOZIOLLE JeEsH 004 o7 BUrT Se9|  100d| dd IJ9CHLSNIAVY ¥025|02001-F10z
) 53] aNAL |FIOzeE L) FLOT/0ZI L} PaE Yoea|  100d HO NO0YEHIA0 PORS|Z200LFI0T
! G E[ TR Y37 E Y YIOZ/LIVE BEdH[o0d o} eur seD|  100d o0 HOOHAYIAG ¥080|Z200LvI0Z
i 3] SNYL  [vEOCIaLLL FLOZ/SLITL eI e 100d 13 AV FOLZ (21000 +102
L sal AL |FHOZIBHLL ¥LOZ/BLLL PeISWea|  100d 17 TIHNIIED 2089 +200k+H02
I ] ML |FLOSEILL FIOZE/LL JayEeH [06d O eulrSED|  100d 1D TUHNIIUD 2089 | 1200F-FE0Z
I S8l 3L [PHOZEL/LL YLOZELTE fud®usy| 1004 U0 ONTF 153404 FIEZ[6L001 7102
¥ B JON3d| Jndl  [pLogiilT VIOZILILL ByRo[ 100d ©d ON349 L1STH04 | 162[61001-+102
) g8l ML [PL0LLT ViG] FEIS YR 100d 0 ON38 LSTU0S L 1SZ|EL00L V0
3 53] E[s TR Ve PIOZEN L BeaH jood opsUI15eS]  100d U0 ON=8 183504 LIGZ|BL00L¥L0Z
T S ANl |FLOZELLL FLOZELILL oS Wwed|  100d ©0 NOBNANY 0069(€F001+102
I 33l ML |FIOELLL FI0ZILIL ) I3jedH [ood o) aUI SED| 100d +a NOANUNY 0062|EF00FFI0Z
T TN AL |FLOT/OEITL VL0Z/02/ 1L aEsHBEA|  Wid Hd JHONSDAN 5009 |8F0LF10Z
z TNIL SATVA B NVd J3MMOHS|  SrdLl |FLOZIEHLL FLOZICHTL BYRO[ Whd QY 3901d SSON Z¥ZZ[PE0LF102
[y TYNIZ Il [vlozibny ¥LOZILLL TeEsH BIEM|  WNId U0 NOSnany 9068 |Sv0ZF 102
F4 551 PLELAY OTNVEA| el [PLOe/ELLL vLOZIZHLE [ENSIA OIPAH 84l HdS4 13 3AYIST L008|510E-710E
! S8 FULENL OTvE| 35 1vd A [BUid 214 dd54 LD ISYNHNIAYH 0083[Z10E¥102
L YN[ SNIEWMTd 90 ALOT I ON|  Srdl  |rhOe/kelbh viozizivk [ZNELNETE] J0V| H0 3JUOHISNIAVY PO25|ZI01FI02
) TYNId ONILODA VIoDuad| dndl  [FLozioih VIOTOLL f=Te) 00| Hd 3JJOHLISNIAVY POZG|Z1017 0T
3 SSI IONVHD 0AS WORLDT 13| andLl  [vI0eiw i} FIOZATLL BRO ooV N1 VST 13 007G [S001-7102
# lsnivis S3LON 1Ins3y | aa137dWos | aanaaHos NOLLOFJSNI IdAL ssayaav [N
102 ¥439INIAON

907 NOILD3dSNI




9071 NOLLOA4SNI

o8 1oL

) WNI3| VLEiL B L0l A3 1vd| Sl |FLOCLE ¥i0e/zzi0l TEUl3 BUIp[ing 85| AWoid 39QUIRNHINOS 0029|6FI6T7H0Z
[ SSI[ PLEIOL T vi/9L0F T IVE| Indl  |PIOZET ¥10Z/81/00 yBnoy [EdLEUZa EES NS4 901 €[Z108-¥102
! SSI|  7I/EZ/ol B PLGLIOL A3vd| 3NdLl  [FHOCRIFE F10e/910k UBned [earPad gds N1S421T1d 90+E[ZF067102
v g3l VIBEGE OF VS| el |pHOZ/ELEE FIOZIBEZI0N [PECIddY AEManI] u4S ©a NOSNANY 2089(E006¥10Z
z ssi P EE 2 E N e (250 ~ BUELT 48]  AWMDId SDAIHLNOS 0009|2206 F10Z
z 53] FULLAL QZVA|] el |Fr0ziEbbE VIOZ/ELILL [N DR UdS|  AMDId IDUIEHLNOS 0009|2206 HOZ
z EE] : FELLLL QTS| Sl [PLOZELILL LOZILLAL T ybnoy [eaupsa dd5| AWDId IDAIHHLN0S 000922067102
z Ssl PULLAL OTvd| Jndl  |pEOC/EHLE FIOZILLTL Q-do] Buigunid U34S A 3DAIIHLINOS 0009|2206 108
! 881 SndEL  [FIGTLTE Y02/ SURAT - aseapr BN e TdL 31QQvS Ho6e|0L06F10Z
U R - SNYL  |FHOZ/END PIoeEN L 1000 ABMONIT S TaL 310aYS 1068|0I06-7I0Z
i EE] PHELLL OFvd| 351vd ¥L0e/BLEE Bujaels EES 10 3A93S3d Z00S| 12067102
! S8l FUEULL QI vd] 38 1vd VIOZ/ELILL UBROH [EIIUEtooR EES 10 SAY3S3Y 1005| 12067102
1 5] VLBHLL QT 94| IS 1vd FI02/8L1 L UBnoY [eal50a= EES 10 /93534 2005 Fe06FI0E
! 5] FIHEHIE O 74| 35174 FLOZ/EHLL WO-do1 BuguInid e 15 3Ad353Y 2005 [1206-VI0E
3 58I VLML B PHLVE GIvd| andl  |vLoziElill FioziL L NIDTE] EES Ud N00Yg9IN0 2069|9206-710Z
€ S8I|  FPHINFE R pRLLL O v andl [PROZELLL PLOZILLL UBRoY [eSIUBUSoA | 94§ HdHOCUEHIND 2069|9206 I0E
3 SSI PHLMLL R PUORL QI vd| andl  |FLOZEL/LL FI0ZILLE yBnod [eaiipas ddS U0 N00IEEIA0 2069|5206-7102
3 SSI|~ PHIMLL R PHLLL QI0Vd| S0dL | PLOZELHE vloziL NG00 BUIqLinld R 90 YOGUEHIN0 c0B9|92067 102
3 TYNIS ANEL |PLOZILLIEE Fi0eiLiitL [CELETE] U945 AMid SDUEHIEON 1079 |S$P06-E102
z TYNId FULLE Qavd| 3ndl  |VLOZILHIL Floziiil JeulJ Buipng 948 ANDId SDQEHIHON HoP9|9v06 €102
! 58I INEL | PLOZILLTE FIOZILILL (peciddy AemaAlid 945 ANDId JDCIGHLHON S0E8|#006-710¢
! 5] SMYL |FLOC/OMEE ¥LOZIOLLE $E5 - oﬁlmmg_ H35| ANOId IDMEHLIHON 2029|0067 10T
I ] 3NdL  |PIOCIoHE FIOZI0H} SURS - esesey O UaS| AN IDARIAIE0N [029| 1006V 10¢
! 53] AL |PLOZ0LLE FLOZIOLITL oEeiddy RemeAlQ d4S|  AWOId SDARHIUON 2029 | 1006-¥102
I 3] SMal |FHOciolTl FI0Z/OLLE B0d-1 EER] dd NOL=1aaiN 1085 |EE06-7 102
! TYNIZ ET T YA FIZ/ELITE [EVELNETE] P F50K AMOQVIN 08¢ | ZF06-EL02
3 VNI Al | PIOTELTE FIOZELILL “jeld Reaing G F5Aid MOGYSN €057 [LP06-€102
! SS1 3L [VI0Z0ZILE VIOZI0E/ T GeREpunad H4S[ 80 NI 1O MOAY3N €0eL| EGe+10Z
) 1] APl |¥I0Z/OLLE FLGeL1 | AEAINS Uilod ¥45] ©A NI 1O MCAvaN €022 | Le0sL0Z
z s8I I T L vL0ZILLE YBnoy BujquInig ¥45|  ©d N9 MOV £02L | LEQBFH0E
T S8t INEL  |PIOZIEHLE FICEL L [PE0IddY AemaAld H4S 1D 1SSNHNIAVH 008251067102
T SSI| AL [PHOCOZIEL VI0ZI0el} | UBnoy Buiqunid ad5 H0 ONZ8 153404 905L|El6F102

# |snivis S3LON £INS3Y | @31314w02 | AANAIHOS NOLLO3dSNI 3dAL ssTuaav m.__.m__h“___m._..n,__
7102 H39INIAON




& &
" 0
SL0Z Ad =g 02
PLOZ Ad == | O.?
09
£10T A = Ow
001}
ZL0Z Ad =l 021
LOZ Ad — < —a MM_—“
081
vll Lzl 106 oLS G¢9 lejol Jea)
z8 8g 8G €9 laqusydeg
zzl 8 €9 8¢ ysnbny
Ll 1)) x> 7 Ainp
vel 08 v €9 sunp
06 ¢l 8G Zs Aepy
8G1 pLL op 2. [dy
9/ 08 &4 88 yosep
16 Z8 9z 9¢ Areniqe4
¥6 0S 62 cP Arenuer
1L 0S Zv Lt Jaquiada(
08 0L W 1S Ly JaquieAoN
88 90l 19 9¢ 6 13q03}20
S1L0Z A4 ¥10Z Ad £L0Z A4 Z1L0Z Ad LLOZ AS

Joday uonoadsuj Ajyjuop




¥LOZIGIES

=
o~
o
o

SIV.LOL W3l

osIN

JapiO Ylopp doys

panss| suoneyn

anjosay/palldwon

poJUBIL) LUOISUS)X]

™

9olloN AeQ 01

anjosay/paljdwo)

DD (F|O(F|O|O|O

< |[<|eN
| W0

sBuluIepn [eqIOA

S|e1o0L QLA o/ &
£/ 8

)
& fVOﬁ ﬁw&/ P .vm«r\&&v /nwn

SuooY JO2IJO

Qo
@9
1y

0o o o o [0 o o

SIVIOL W3ll

sigaq pue yseil

20uBUBUIE 107

SS[OIYaA pavunf

CEETNEE

alnjonig [ebay|

Buidwnq [ebay|

—|O(QIC|O|(W |~

sselo) ybiy

s|ejol dlA S A
& /S

S $ A > /& O /N (o)
SEILILTES o\xp S I

uonduosaq
uonejoip

G1L0c-¥1L0C
140d3d INJWIDHO4ANT 2d0D




PIWIK

Website Parker, TX

Date range: 2014, November

Monthly Web Report



Visits Summary
4230
-ﬁw\ﬁsim

%_

2115

Jun2012 Sep=2012 Dec2012 Mar2013  Jun2013 Sep 2013 Dec 2013 Mar 2014 Jun 2014  Sep 2014

Name Value.

Unigue visitors 2411

Visits 2428
Actions 6995
Maximum actions in one visit 52

Bounce Rate 52%
Actions per Visit 2.9

Avg. Visit Duration {in seconds) 00:02:14

Website Parker, TX | Date range: 2014, November | Page 2 of 4



0%
04
0%
anuaAY
%0
%0
%0
238y
UDISIBAUCD

%9TES
%910
%rL09

2}y I3unoyg

%09
%1095
%LT 09

I3ey 2ounog

¥ Jo £ abed | JoqWIBAON ‘pTOT :9b6uel ajeq | X1 JodJed 23SASM

og10:00 e

v1-€0:00 T9°€

LT:20:00 6E"¢
QUSYIM

uo swil "Bay  USIA sod suoidy

8T:10:00 9°7

PE10:00 89'Z

¥$:20:00 10°€
2)isqam

uo awi] "BAy  3sIA Jod suopoy

ETC
rLSE
80ce

SuoRY

89S
€912
Yoy

suonY

6
166
SPET

SHSIA

20Z
L08
STPL

SUSIA

SONSqaM
saulbug yoieas

Alu3 17241Q
adA] Uslip)ay

9dA]) Jau1a)oy

s

3liqo
umouwiun

dopyseq ¢

dopisaq sa 9)1qo

dopisaq SA 2Igo



¥ Jo 7 abed | ;aquianon 'pT0Z obuel ajeq | X1 19xed 33ISqaM

0% %Sl 0T:T0:00 YA A 29 8 s8I0
0% %00T 00:00:00 1 1 I BIU0IST mm
0% %00T 00:00:00 T T I Jgnday yoezy ™
0% %00T 00:00:00 T T 1 anys =8
0% %001 00:00:00 L 1 T oseq euppng B
0% %001 00:00:00 I T I ellensny [
0% %001 00:00:00 1 T T eunuabay =7
0% %00T 00:00:00 1 z r4 euewoy I
0% %00T 00:00°00 T [4 Z lebnyiod B
0% %001 00:00:00 [ [4 Z SpueldYeN ==
0% %08 Z€:00°00 4 S z ujeds =%
0% %00T 00:00:00 1 £ £ puepazums L3
0% %1999 ZT-10:00 £L°E ot £ lizeag El
0% %00T 00:00:00 T 14 v aulenn wmm
0% %Sl £0:00:00 ST g 12 aouetq 0]
0% %SL 8t:70:00 ST1 g 14 eulyn B
0% %08 £T:10:00 vz A S ssuiddiiyd B
0§ %0% LT'T0'00 Z€ 91 g elpu] =
0% %09 £500:00 8T 6 S epeue;

0% %EEEE LY'T0:00 ITE 61 9 wopbury payun 22
0% %S48 <0:00:00 €L 6 8 umowjun £
0% %00T 00:00:00 1 £1 €L uojjesopa4 uelssny W
0% %00T 00:00-00 L 414 6¥ Auewss =i
0% %005 0Z:20:00 v6'Z ¢949 162L sajels pajun ==

CHEGET .
‘anusAly 218y 3dUnog uo awiy ‘Bay  SIA 42d suoipy SUBIOY SUSIA Anunod

Anuno)



P

item (o

C'Sec Use Only

Council Agenda Item

Budget Account Code:  1.10-7300 / 2-70-7300 | Meeting Date:  pecember 18, 2014
Department/

Budgeted Amount: $16,000.00 Requestor: Finance

Fund Bglance-before $0.00 Prepared by: J. Boyd

expenditure:

Estimated Cost: $15,504.00 Date Prepared:  12/09/2014

I Complete and bound copies of the audit report were placed in

Exhibits: - . . . .
Council's mailboxes earlier in the month. A complete copy is available
in the digital packet on the website.

AGENDA SUBJECT

CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON ANNUAL AUDIT

REPORT. [BOYD]

SUMMARY

Mike Brooks with BrooksCardiel, PLLC will present the final audit results to Council.

POSSIBLE ACTION

Approve, Table

inter — Office Use

Approved by:

Department Head/
Requestor:

Johnna Beyd Date: | 12/9/14

City Attorney:

Jim Shepherd by attached letter |pate: 10/24/2014

City Administrator: ) @/Z % Date: |2 /)'z_ /W
~/ ) '
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Shepherd Law Firm
1901 N. Contral Expresyway, Suite 200

Richardson, Texa 75080-3528
Jumes E. Shapherd Te: (972) 234-3117
Attorney at Law FaX- {972) BES-3827
Jim@JShepherdLaw.com
October 20, 2014
BrooksCardiel, PLLC "
1095 Evergreen Circle RECEIVED
Suite 200 - 29
The/Woodlands, TX 77380 OCT 22 20%
Re:  City of Parker, Texas — 2013 Audit CITY OF PARKER
Gentlemen:

We have received your request of the City of Patker, Texas (the "City"). We advise you as
follows in connection with your examination of the accounts of the City as of September 30, 2013,
and for the fiscal year then ended. Our response is submitted to you subject to the terms and
limitations set forth in this letter. You should note carefully that our response may not conform in
some respects fo the City's request, and the terms and limitations below may be in addition to, or
different from, terms and limitations set forth in the City's request.

1. ABA Statement of Policy. The American Bar Association adopted a Statement of
Policy in December 1975 relating to lawyers' responses to auditors' requests for information
(herein called the "Statement of Policy," which term includes the commentary that is an integral
part of the Statement of Policy). The Statement of Policy has been furmnished to the accounting
profession as Exhibit [1 to the Statement on Auditing Standards No. 12, "Inquiry of a Client's
Lawyer Concerning Litigation, Claims, and Assessments,” issued by the Auditing Standards
Executive Committee of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in J anuary, 1976.
This letter, and all other communications, written or oral, from this firm to you on the subject
matter of this letter, are submitted to you subject to all limitations of the Statement of Policy.

2. Scope of this firm's engagement. This firm has during the period in question
represented the City only in general municipal law matters, to the exclusion of disclosure matters

identified below. There may exist matters of a legal nature that could have bearing on the City's
financial condition with respect to which we have not been consulted. This firm has not been
engaged to advise and has not advised the City generally concerning the City's disclosure
obligations including but not limited to any such disclosure obligations under federal or state
securities laws or under any applicable requirements of the Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 5. We assume such matters are customarily handled by bond counsel for the City.
Accordingly, we do not make any undertaking with regard to advising the City concerning its
disclosure obligations.

3 Information acquired in professional capacity only. Our response is limited to
matters involving professional engagement of this firm as counsel, to which lawyers in this firm
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have given substantive attention in the form of legal representation or consultation during the
period in question, and does not include information received by lawyers in this firm in another
role or by lawyers no longer with this firm.

4, Contractually assumed obligations and other loss contingencies. Unless requested
to comment upon a specified contractually assumed liability or other loss contingency arising from

unasserted claims, we are not undertaking to comment upon those types of loss contingencies,

because we understand that you can satisfy yourself with respect thereto through other audit
procedures.

Subject to the foregoing, we advise you that at October 18, 2013, we have not been engaged
to give substantive legal attention to, or represent the City in connection with any material overtly
threatened or pending litigation or proceedings against the City.

The information set forth herein is based in part upon our internal review procedure,
consisting of inquiries to individual lawyers within the firm who have given substantive attention,
in the form of legal consultation or representation, to legal matters on behalf of the City. The
information given is as of October 20, 2014. We do not undertake to advise you of changes which
thereafter may be brought to our attention.

It is our understanding with the City that, by making the request set forth in its letter to us,
the City does not intend to waive the attomey-client privilege with respect to any information
which the City has furnished to us. Moreover, please be advised that our response to you shall not
be construed in any way to constitutc a waiver of the protection of the attorney work-product
privilege with respect to any files involving the City.

As of September 20, 2014 the total indebtedness of the City to us was $0.00.

This letter is solely for your information in connection with your audit of the financial
condition of the City as of September 30, 2013 and is not to be quoted in whole or in part or
otherwise referred to in any financial statement of the City or related document, nor is it to be filed
with any governmental agency or other person, without the prior written consent of this firm,
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this letter may be furnished to others in compliance with court
process or in connection with any challenge regarding your audit by the City or a regulatory
agency, provided that this firm is given written notice of the circumstances at least twenty days
before this letter is to be so furnished to others, or as long in advance as possible if the situation
does not permit such period of notice.

Sincerely,

cph: w Firm

\ﬁc: City of Parker
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Certified Public Accountants

% Brooks

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Parker, Texas:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Parker, Texas (the “City”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The City’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
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evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2014,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

BM//S Ot «LZ/ #20C

BrooksCardiel, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
The Woodlands, Texas
November 8, 2014
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City of Parker, Texas

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
September 30, 2014

As management of the City of Parker, Texas (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2014.

Financial Highlights

e The City's total combined net position is $48,418,493 at September 30, 2014. Of this, $6,117,206
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and
creditors.

e At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund
balances of $4,742,413, an increase of $660,109.

e As of the end of the year, the unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $4,350,130 or
180% of total general fund expenditures.

e The City had an overall decrease in net position of $1,085,164, which is primarily due to
depreciation expense taken on capital assets.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to financial statements. This
report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to support the
basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows/outflows with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating. Other non-financial factors, such as the City’s property tax base and the condition of the
City’s infrastructure, need to be considered in order to assess the overall health of the City.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2014

are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public
works, culture and recreation, and community development. The business-type activities of the City
include water, sewer and sanitation operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also the legally separate Parker Volunteer Fire Department for which the City is
financially accountable. Although legally separate, the Fire Department functions for all practical
purposes as a department of the City and therefore has been included as an integral part of the primary
government.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 through 19 of this report.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Funds may be considered as operating companies of the parent corporation, which is the City of
Parker. They are usually segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Parker uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal reporting requirements.

The two categories of City funds are governmental and proprietary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2014

The City of Parker maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general and debt service funds which are
considered to be major funds.

The City of Parker adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general, debt service, and utility funds.
A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided to demonstrate compliance with the general fund

budget.

Proprietary Funds

The City maintains one type of proprietary fund which is considered an enterprise fund. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water distribution,
wastewater collection/treatment, water construction operations and sanitation services. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for the water distribution, wastewater
collection/treatment fund, and sanitation funds. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be
found in the basic financial statements of this report.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
are the last section of the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements, MD&A, and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain Required Supplementary Information (RSI). The RSI that GASB Statement No. 34 requires
includes a budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund and schedule of funding progress for
Texas Municipal Retirement System. The RSI can be found after the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted previously, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial
position. For the City of Parker, assets exceeded liabilities by $48,418,493 as of September 30, 2014, in
the primary government.

The largest portion of the City’s net position, $42,013,184, reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g.,
land, city hall, police station, streets, and drainage systems, as well as the public works facilities), less
any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
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the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Current assets of Governmental Activities as of September 30, 2014 and September 30, 2013 were
$4,909,009 and $4,211,182, respectively. The increase of $697,827 was primarily attributable to the due
to other funds balance of $(262,922) outstanding at prior year being moved to a transfer in the current
year, and due to revenues exceeding expenditures for the year which contributed to additional cash
and investment reserves at the current year end.

Current assets of Business-Type Activities as of September 30, 2014 and September 30, 2013 were
$1,607,048 and $2,339,508, respectively. The decrease of $732,460 was primarily attributable to the due
from other funds balance of $262,922 outstanding at prior year being moved to a transfer in the current
year, a decrease of $117,984 in net accounts receivable as a result of significant reduction in water usage
due to the drought water restrictions, and due to cash reserves being used to service bonds.

Statement of Net Position:

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position:

2014 2013
Governmental Business-Type Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Current and
other assets $ 4,909,009 $ 1,607,048 % 6,516,057 % 4,211,182 % 2,339,508 % 6,550,690
Capital assets, net 35,375,983 12,577,845 47,953,828 36,651,089 12,968,552 49,619,641
Total Assets 40,284,992 14,184,893 54,469,885 40,862,271 15,308,060 56,170,331

Deferred Outflows

of Resources 79,865 73,721 153,586 85,569 78,987 164,556
Other liabilities 154,612 56,748 211,360 116,104 143,831 259,935
Long-term liabilities 3,000,846 2,992,772 5,993,618 3,273,615 3,297,680 6,571,295
Total Liabilities 3,155,458 3,049,520 6,204,978 3,389,719 3,441,511 6,831,230

Net Position:

Net investment in

capital assets 32,411,910 9,601,274 42,013,184 33,409,605 9,687,073 43,096,678
Restricted 288,103 - 288,103 283,076 - 283,076
Unrestricted 4,509,386 1,607,820 6,117,206 3,865,440 2,258,463 6,123,903
Total Net Position $ 37,209,399 % 11,209,094 $ 48418493 $ 37,558,121 % 11,945,536  $ 49,503,657
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Statement of Activities:

The following table provides a summary of the City’s changes in net position:

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014 For the Year Ended September 30, 2013
Total Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 342,602 $ 1,925,667 % 2,268,269 $ 377,427 $ 2,353,786 % 2,731,213
Grants and contributions 98,898 - 98,898 125,451 - 125,451
General revenues:
Property taxes 1,967,151 - 1,967,151 1,998,515 - 1,998,515
Sales taxes 129,197 - 129,197 518,256 - 518,256
Franchise and local taxes 238,171 - 238,171 208,724 - 208,724
Investment income 41,821 837 42,658 37,367 1,151 38,518
Other revenues 228,000 - 228,000 48,286 - 48,286
Total Revenues 3,045,840 1,926,504 4,972,344 3,314,026 2,354,937 5,668,963
Expenses
General government 823,971 - 823,971 867,217 - 867,217
Public safety 949,383 - 949,383 877,683 - 877,683
Transportation 1,776,842 - 1,776,842 2,044,862 - 2,044,862
Culture and recreation 11,721 - 11,721 14,331 - 14,331
Interest and fiscal charges 95,567 97,262 192,829 101,695 104,423 206,118
Water, sewer, & sanitation - 2,302,762 2,302,762 - 2,270,857 2,270,857
Total Expenses 3,657,484 2,400,024 6,057,508 3,905,788 2,375,280 6,281,068
Change in Net Position
Before Transfers (611,644) (473,520) (1,085,164) (591,762) (20,343) (612,105)
Transfers, net 262,922 (262,922) - - - -
Total 262,922 (262,922) - - - -
Change in Net Position (348,722) (736,442) (1,085,164) (591,762) (20,343) (612,105)
Beginning Net Position 37,558,121 11,945,536 49,503,657 38,149,883 11,965,879 50,115,762

Ending Net Position $ 37,209,399 $ 11,209,094 $ 48,418,493 % 37,558,121 % 11,945,536  $ 49,503,657
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Graphic presentations of selected data from the summary tables are displayed below to assist in the
analysis of the City’s activities.

Governmental Activities - Revenues

Property taxes Sales t'axes Franchise and local
635."'6 R 4% taxes

8%

Investment income
2%

Other revenues

Charges for services 7%
11%

For the year ended September 30, 2014, revenues from governmental activities totaled $3,045,840.
Property tax, other revenues and charges for services are the City’s largest revenue sources. Sales tax
decreased $389,059 or 301% due to a one-time sales tax distribution from the State Comptroller in prior
year that was not repeated in the current year. This distribution was the result of a state audit which
revealed that sales tax previously collected was not correctly allocated to the City. Other revenues
increased by $179,714 or 79% due to inspection fees for two new developments within the City. Grants
and contributions decreased by $26,553 or 22% due to several nonrecurring grants received in the prior
year. All other revenues remained relatively stable when compared to the previous year.

This graph shows the governmental function expenses of the City:

Governmental Activities - Expenses

Transportation
S 48%

Public safety
25%

Interest and fiscal
charges
3%

General government
24%

For the year ended September 30, 2014, expenses for governmental activities totaled $3,657,484. This
represents a decrease of $248,304 or 3% from the prior year. The City’s largest functional expense is
transportation of $1,776,842 which is primarily depreciation of transportation related assets.
Transportation expenses decreased by $268,020 or 15% from prior year. The decrease was a result of a
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2014

decrease in project spending by the public works department. All other expenses remained relatively
stable when compared to the previous year.

Business-type activities are shown comparing operating costs to revenues generated by related
services.

For the year ended September 30, 2014, charges for services by business-type activities totaled
$1,925,667. This is a decrease of $428,119, or 18%, from the previous year. This decrease directly relates
to water usage due to a surcharge imposed to conserve water.

Business-Type Activities - Revenues and Expenses
2,500,000
2,000,000

1,500,000

1,000,000
O Expenses

500,000 [ Charges for Services

Total expenses increased $24,744 due primarily to an increase in the cost of water purchased by the
City. All other expenses remained relatively consistent.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to demonstrate and ensure compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information of near-
term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of the year the general fund reflected a total fund balance of $4,489,404. Of this, $34,409 is
restricted for municipal court and $104,180 is committed for capital improvements. The unassigned
fund balance totaled $4,350,130 as of year end.

There was an increase in governmental fund balance of $660,109 over the prior year. The City had a
combination of higher than budgeted revenues and less expenditures than planned.

11
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2014

Proprietary Funds - The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

There was a total positive budget variance of $792,488 in the general fund. This is a combination of
positive revenue and expenditure variances of $128,414 and $462,345, respectively. Half of the revenue
sources received more revenue than anticipated with the other half of the sources receiving less than
anticipated. All expenditures were less than budgeted.

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of the end of the year, the City’s governmental activities funds had invested $35,375,983 in a variety
of capital assets and infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is included with the
governmental capital assets as required by GASB Statement No. 34. The City’s business-type activities
funds had invested $12,577,845 in a variety of capital assets and infrastructure, net of accumulated
depreciation.

Major capital asset events during the current year include the following;:

e Purchase of two police department vehicles for a total of $65,752
e Purchase of two volunteer fire department vehicles for a total of $64,750
¢ Road maintenance and upgrades for $267,562

More detailed information about the City’s capital assets is presented in note IV. C to the financial
statements.

LONG-TERM DEBT

At the end of the current year, the City had total bonds outstanding of $5,755,000. During the year, the
City had a reduction in the long-term debt of $565,000. More detailed information about the City’s
long-term liabilities is presented in note IV. D. to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET
The Mayor and City Council are committed to maintaining and improving the overall wellbeing of the

City of Parker and improving services provided to their public citizens. The City is budgeting for
growth in the upcoming year.

12
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2014

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Parker’s finances for all
those with an interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning this report or requests for additional
financial information should be directed to the City Administrator, 5700 East Parker Road, Parker,
Texas 75002.
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City of Parker, Texas

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,671,098 1,407,308 % 3,078,406
Investments 3,162,172 - 3,162,172
Receivables, net 75,739 199,740 275,479
Total Current Assets 4,909,009 1,607,048 6,516,057
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 843,484 107,417 950,901
Net depreciable capital assets 34,532,499 12,470,428 47,002,927
35,375,983 12,577,845 47,953,828
Total Assets 40,284,992 14,184,893 54,469,885
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding 79,865 73,721 153,586
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 79,865 73,721 153,586
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities 99,700 40,953 140,653
Customer deposits 42,000 - 42,000
Accrued interest payable 12,912 15,795 28,707
154,612 56,748 211,360
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 312,001 320,676 632,677
Due in more than one year 2,688,845 2,672,096 5,360,941
3,000,846 2,992,772 5,993,618
Total Liabilities 3,155,458 3,049,520 6,204,978
Net Position
Net investment in
capital assets 32,411,910 9,601,274 42,013,184
Restricted 288,103 - 288,103
Unrestricted 4,509,386 1,607,820 6,117,206
Total Net Position $ 37,209,399 11,209,094 $ 48,418,493

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Parker, Texas

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General government $ 823,971 $ 247 676 $ 1,036
Public safety 949,383 94,926 97,862
Transportation 1,776,842 - -
Culture and recreation 11,721 - -
Interest and fiscal charges 95,567 - -
Total Governmental Activities 3,657,484 342,602 98,898
Business-Type Activities
Water, Sewer, & Sanitation 2,400,024 1,925,667 -
Total Business-Type Activities 2,400,024 1,925,667 -
Total Primary Government $ 6,057,508 $ 2,268,269 $ 98,898

General Revenues:
Taxes
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise and local taxes
Investment income
Other revenues
Transfers
Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position

Beginning Net Position
Ending Net Position
See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ (575,259) % - % (575,259)
(756,595) - (756,595)
(1,776,842) - (1,776,842)
(11,721) - (11,721)
(95,567) - (95,567)
(3,215,984) - (3,215,984)
- (474,357) (474,357)
- (474,357) (474,357)
(3,215,984) (474,357) (3,690,341)
1,967,151 - 1,967,151
129,197 - 129,197
238,171 - 238,171
41,821 837 42,658
228,000 - 228,000
262,922 (262,922) -
2,867,262 (262,085) 2,605,177
(348,722) (736,442) (1,085,164)
37,558,121 11,945,536 49,503,657
$ 37209399 $ 11,209,094 $ 48,418,493
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City of Parker, Texas

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2014
Nonmajor
Parker Total
Debt Volunteer Fire =~ Governmental
General Service Department Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,484,060 $ 93,875 $ 93,163 $ 1,671,098
Investments 3,096,201 - 65,971 3,162,172
Receivables, net 71,069 4,670 - 75,739
Total Assets $ 4,651,330 $ 98,545 % 159,134  $ 4,909,009
Liabilities
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities $ 99,700 $ - $ - $ 99,700
Customer deposits 42,000 - - 42,000
Total Liabilities 141,700 - - 141,700
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 20,226 4,670 - 24,896
Fund Balances
Restricted for:
Municipal court 34,409 - - 34,409
Police seizures 685 - - 685
Debt service - 93,875 - 93,875
Fire department - - 159,134 159,134
Committed for:
Capital improvements 104,180 - - 104,180
Unassigned reported in:
General fund 4,350,130 - - 4,350,130
Total Fund Balances 4,489,404 93,875 159,134 4,742,413
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances § 4,651,330 % 98,545 % 159,134 % 4,909,009

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Parker, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2014

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 4,742,413

Adjustments for the Statement of Net Position:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, not reported in the governmental funds.
Capital assets - non-depreciable 843,484
Capital assets - net depreciable 34,532,499

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds. 24,896

Deferred outflows of resources, represent a consumption of net position that applies
applies to a future period(s) and is not recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/ expenditure) until then.
Deferred charge on refunding 79,865

Some liabilities, including bonds payable and deferred charges, are not reported as
liabilities in the governmental funds.

Accrued interest (12,912)
Bond premium (93,063)
Non-current liabilities due in one year (312,001)
Non-current liabilities due in more than one year (2,595,782)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 37,209,399

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Parker, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Revenues
Property tax
Sales tax
Franchise and local taxes
License and permits
Contributions and donations
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other revenue
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current:
General government
Police department
Municipal court
Fire department
Building and code enforcement
Parks and recreation
Public works
City property
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Sale of capital assets
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balances

Beginning fund balances
Ending Fund Balances

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Parker Total
Debt Volunteer Fire  Governmental
General Service Department Funds

$ 1,598,621 $ 370,326 $ - % 1,968,947
129,197 - - 129,197
238,171 - - 238,171
247,676 - - 247,676
86,503 - 11,359 97,862
1,036 - - 1,036
94,926 - - 94,926
41,008 435 378 41,821
192,700 - 3,054 195,754
2,629,838 370,761 14,791 3,015,390
507,337 - - 507,337
722,571 - - 722,571
114,680 - - 114,680
245,727 - 76,460 322,187
91,181 - - 91,181
1,860 - - 1,860
464,827 - - 464,827
57,526 - - 57,526
- 269,100 - 269,100
- 99,180 - 99,180
2,205,709 368,280 76,460 2,650,449
424,129 2,481 (61,669) 364,941
264,458 - 62,728 327,186

(62,728) (1,536) - (64,264)
32,246 - - 32,246
233,976 (1,536) 62,728 295,168
658,105 945 1,059 660,109
3,831,299 92,930 158,075 4,082,304
$ 4,489,404 % 93,875 % 159,134 $ 4,742,413
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City of Parker, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 660,109

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital outlay 424,128
Depreciation expense (1,699,234)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (1,796)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.
Compensated absences (4,642)
Accrued interest 1,006

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases, certificates of obligation)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance
costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when they are first issued; whereas,
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term
debt and related items.

Amortization of deferred charges on refunding (5,704)
Amortization of premium 8,311
Principal payments 269,100

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities § (348,722)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Parker, Texas
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

Noncurrent Assets

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Net depreciable capital assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred charge on refunding

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

PROPRIETARY FUND
September 30, 2014

Total Current Assets

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accrued interest

Noncurrent Liabilities

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Net Position

24

Water, Sewer
& Sanitation

$ 1,407,308
199,740

1,607,048

107,417
12,470,428

12,577,845

14,184,893

73,721

73,721

40,953
15,795

56,748

320,676
2,672,096

3,049,520

9,601,274
1,607,820

$ 11,209,094




City of Parker, Texas

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Water, Sewer
& Sanitation

Operating Revenues

Water sales $ 1,313,287
Sewer revenue 159,315
Garbage collection 284,544
Meter installations 95,500
Other revenue 73,021

Total Operating Revenues 1,925,667

Operating Expenses

Cost of water 1,503,860
Cost of sewer 138,608
Cost of garbage 269,587
Depreciation 390,707
Total Operating Expenses 2,302,762

Operating Income (Loss) (377,095)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income 837
Interest expense (97,262)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (96,425)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers (473,520)

Transfers
Transfers (out) (262,922)
Change in Net Position (736,442)
Beginning net position 11,945,536

Ending Net Position $ 11,209,094

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Parker, Texas

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Page 1 of 2)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Water, Sewer
& Sanitation

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers $ 2,306,573
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,999,139)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 307,434
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfer (out) (262,922)
Net Cash (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities (262,922)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Principal paid on debt (295,900)
Interest paid on debt (101,003)
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (396,903)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments 837
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 837
Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (351,554)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 1,758,862

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,407,308

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Parker, Texas

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Page 2 of 2)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Water, Sewer
& Sanitation

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $ (377,095)

Adjustments to reconcile operating

income to net cash provided:
Depreciation 390,707
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in:

Accounts receivable 117,984
Due from other funds 262,922
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (87,084)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 307,434

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Description of Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported
by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
to external customers for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

B. Reporting Entity

The City of Parker, Texas (the “City”) was incorporated on March 22, 1969 and operates
under a Council-Manager form of government. The City provides: police; fire; code
enforcement; public works; street repair and maintenance; parks; general administrative
services; water; wastewater; and sanitation.

The City is an independent political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by an elected
council and a mayor and is considered a primary government. As required by generally
accepted accounting principles, these basic financial statements have been prepared based on
considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations, or
functions as part of the City's financial reporting entity. The Parker Volunteer Fire
Department, although legally separate, is considered part of the reporting entity. No other
entities have been included in the City's reporting entity. Additionally, as the City is
considered a primary government for financial reporting purposes, its activities are not
considered a part of any other governmental or other type of reporting entity.

Considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations or
functions in the City's financial reporting entity are based on criteria prescribed by generally
accepted accounting principles. These same criteria are evaluated in considering whether the
City is a part of any other governmental or other type of reporting entity. The overriding
elements associated with prescribed criteria considered in determining that the City's
financial reporting entity status is that of a primary government are that it has a separately
elected governing body; it is legally separate; and is fiscally independent of other state and
local governments. Additionally prescribed criteria under generally accepted accounting
principles include considerations pertaining to organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and considerations pertaining to organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete.
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City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

Blended Component Unit

Parker Volunteer Fire Department

The Parker Volunteer Fire Department (the “VFD”) was created by City ordinance on
February 22, 1983. The purpose of the VFD is to provide fire protection to the citizens of the
City. The Fire Chief is the executive officer of the department and is appointed by the Mayor
of the City.

. Basis of Presentation Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are
interrelated. The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental
funds while business-type activities incorporate data from the government’s enterprise
funds. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the
proprietary funds.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where
the amounts are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other
charges between the government’s water and transit functions and various other functions of
the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including
its blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category —governmental
and proprietary are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

The government reports the following governmental funds:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions are
typically financed.

General Fund

The general fund is used to account for all financial transactions not properly includable
in other funds. The principal sources of revenues include local property taxes, sales and
franchise taxes, licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, and charges for services.
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City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

Expenditures include general government, public safety, public works, code enforcement,
and parks and recreation. The general service fund is considered a major fund for
reporting purposes.

Debt Service Fund
The debt service fund is used to account for the payment of interest and principal on all
general obligation bonds and other long-term debt of governmental funds. The primary

source of revenue for debt service is local property taxes. The City has elected to report
the debt service fund as a major fund.

Volunteer Fire Department Fund
The volunteer fire department fund (the “VFD”) is used to account for contributions and
grants that are contributed to the VFD for fire protections. The VFD is considered

nonmajor for reporting purposes.

Proprietary Fund Types

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that are similar to those often found in
the private sector. All assets, liabilities, equities, revenues, expenses, and transfers relating to
the government’s business activities are accounted for through proprietary funds. The
measurement focus is on determination of net income, financial position, and cash flows.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues include charges for services. Operating expenses include costs of
materials, contracts, personnel, and depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. Proprietary fund types
follow GAAP prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and all
financial Accounting Standards Board’s standards issued prior to November 30, 1989.
Subsequent to this date, the City accounts for its enterprise funds as presented by GASB. The
proprietary fund types used by the City include enterprise funds.

The government reports the following major enterprise fund:
Water, Sewer, & Sanitation Fund

This fund is used to account for the provision of water, sewer & garbage services to the
residents of the City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and
maintenance of the water production and distribution system, water collection and
treatment systems, and contract garbage services. The fund also accounts for the
accumulation of resources for and the payment of long-term debt. All costs are financed
through charges to utility customers.

31



City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

During the course of operations the government has activity between funds for various
purposes. Any residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other
funds and advances to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial
statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements. Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e.,
the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances
between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are
eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type
activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between
funds. In fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers
in/out. While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the
preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds
included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as
transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds
included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as
transfers in the business-type activities column.

. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of
resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of
accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial
statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
tlows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
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City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt
and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all
eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the amount is
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within
60 days of year end). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been
met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this
revenue source (within 60 days of year end). All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund
Balance

1. Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits
and short term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund types
consider temporary investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Reporting for Certain Investments
and External Investment Pools, the City reports all investments at fair value, except for “money
market investments” and “2a7-like pools.” Money market investments, which are short-term
highly liquid debt instruments that may include U.S. Treasury and agency obligations, are
reported at amortized costs. Investment positions in external investment pools that are
operated in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940, such as TexSTAR, are reported using the pools’ share price.

The City has adopted a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds as
defined in the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, of the Texas Governmental Code.
In summary, the City is authorized to invest in the following:

Direct obligations of the U.S. Government
Fully collateralized certificates of deposit and money market accounts
Statewide investment pools

2. Receivables and Interfund Transactions

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the year are referred to as either “interfund receivables/payables”
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City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-
current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds” in the fund financial statements. If the transactions are
between the primary government and its component unit, these receivables and payables are
classified as “due to/from component unit/primary government.” Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance reserve account in the applicable
governmental fund to indicate they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable available financial resources.

All trade receivables are shown net of any allowance for uncollectible amounts.
3. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1
for all real and business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax
Code. Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1
of the year following the year in which imposed. Penalties are calculated after February 1 up
to the date collected by the government at the rate of 6% for the first month and increased
1% per month up to a total of 12%. Interest is calculated after February 1 at the rate of 1% per
month up to the date collected by the government. Under state law, property taxes levied on
real property constitute a lien on the real property which cannot be forgiven without specific
approval of the State Legislature. The lien expires at the end of twenty years. Taxes levied on
personal property can be deemed uncollectible by the City.

4. Inventories and Prepaid Items

The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when the
related liability is incurred, (i.e., the purchase method). The inventories are valued at the
lower of cost or market using the first-in/first-out method. Certain payments to vendors
reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods (prepaid expenditures) are recognized as
expenditures when utilized.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the government, as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded
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City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Interest costs incurred in connection with construction of enterprise fund capital assets are
capitalized when the effects of capitalization materially impact the financial statements.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units,
are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful years.

Estimated
Asset Description Useful Life
Vehicles 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 10 years
Infrastructure 40 years
Water and sewer system 40 years
Buildings and improvements 40 years

6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure)
until then. An example is a deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
government has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of
accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds
report unavailable revenues from one source: property taxes. This amount is deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.
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7. Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
(e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.

8. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance).
In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
government’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using
any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is
depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

9. Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself
can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed
fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of
decision-making authority. The governing council is the highest level of decision-making
authority for the government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the
fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance
remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove
or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the
government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed.
The governing body (council) has by resolution authorized the finance director to assign
fund balance. The council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund
balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent
year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the
removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential
to either remove or revise a commitment.

36



City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

10. Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and proprietary
fund statements consist of unpaid, accumulated vacation balances. The liability has been
calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who
currently are eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who are
expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are
included. Vested or accumulated vacation leave and compensated leave of government-wide
and proprietary funds are recognized as an expense and liability of those funds as the
benefits accrue to employees.

It is the City's policy to liquidate compensated absences with future revenues rather than
with currently available expendable resources. Accordingly, the City's governmental funds
recognize accrued compensated absences when it is paid.

11. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of
net position. The long-term debt consists primarily of bonds payable and accrued
compensated absences.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial
statements until due. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources, net of the
applicable premium or discount and payments of principal and interest reported as
expenditures. In the governmental fund types, issuance costs, even if withheld from the
actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. However, claims and
judgments paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial
statements only for the portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial
resources.

Long-term debt and other obligations, financed by proprietary funds, are reported as
liabilities in the appropriate funds. For proprietary fund types, bond premiums, and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method, if material. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Issuance costs are expensed as incurred in accordance with GASB statement no.
65.

Assets acquired under the terms of capital leases are recorded as liabilities and capitalized in
the government-wide financial statements at the present value of net minimum lease
payments at inception of the lease. In the year of acquisition, capital lease transactions are
recorded as other financing sources and as capital outlay expenditures in the general fund.
Lease payments representing both principal and interest are recorded as expenditures in the

37



City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

general fund upon payment with an appropriate reduction of principal recorded in the
government-wide financial statements.

12. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net position.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance-total
governmental funds and net position-governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term
liabilities, including bonds, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of
activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds
and changes in net position of governmental states that, “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g.,
bonds) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities.”

III. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for the general fund, debt service fund, and water, sewer, & sanitation fund.

Capital projects fund budgets are appropriated on a project-length basis.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The legal level of
control as defined by the City Charter is the function level. No funds can be transferred or
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added to a budgeted item without Council approval. Appropriations lapse at the end of the
year. Several supplemental budget appropriations were made during the year.

1. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations:

For the year ended September 30, 2014, no general fund expenditures exceeded
appropriations at the legal level of control.

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Deposits and Investments

As of September 30, 2014, the primary government had the following investments:

Weighted
Average Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value (Years)
Certificates of deposit $ 3,161,172 1.28
External investment pools 1,291,659 0.0
Total fair value $ 4,452,831
Portfolio weighted average maturity 1.28

Interest rate risk — In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average of maturity not to exceed five years;
structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for
ongoing operations; monitoring credit ratings of portfolio position to assure compliance with
rating requirements imposed by the Public Funds Investment Act; and invest operating
funds primarily in short-term securities or similar government investment pools.

Credit risk — The City’s investment policy limits investments to obligations of the United
States, State of Texas, or their agencies and instrumentalities with an investment quality
rating of not less than “A” or its equivalent, by a nationally recognized investment rating
firm. Other obligations must be unconditionally guaranteed (either express or implied) by
the full faith and credit of the United States Government or the issuing U.S. agency and
investment pools with an investment quality not less than AAA or AAA-m, or equivalent, by
at least one nationally recognized rating service. As of September 30, 2014, the City’s
investment in TexSTAR was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.

Custodial credit risk — deposits: In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. State statutes require that all deposits
in financial institutions be insured or fully collateralized by U.S. government obligations or
its agencies and instrumentalities or direct obligations of Texas or its agencies and
instrumentalities that have a market value of not less than the principal amount of the
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deposits. As of September 30, 2014, the market values of pledged securities and FDIC
exceeded bank balances.

Custodial credit risk — investments: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s investment
policy requires that it will seek to safekeeping securities at financial institutions, avoiding
physical possession. Further, all trades, where applicable, are executed by delivery versus
payment to ensure that securities are deposited in the City’s safekeeping account prior to the
release of funds.

TexSTAR

The Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Fund ("TexSTAR") is a local government investment
pool organized under the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas
Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government
Code. TexSTAR was created in April 2002 by contract among its participating governmental
units and is governed by a board of directors. JPMorgan Fleming Asset Management (USA),
Inc. and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. act as co-administrators, providing
investment management services, participant services, and marketing, respectively.
JPMorgan Chase Bank and/or its subsidiary, J.P. Morgan Investor Services, Inc., provide
custodial, transfer agency, fund accounting, and depository services.

TexSTAR operates in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940. TexSTAR uses amortized cost rather than fair value to report net
position to compute share prices. Accordingly, the fair value of the position in TexSTAR are
the same as the value of TexSTAR shares.

. Receivables

The following comprise receivable balances of the primary government at year end:

Water, Sewer

General Debt Service & Sanitation Total
Property taxes $ 20,226 $ 4,670 $ - $ 24 896
Sales tax 19,244 - - 19,244
Franchise & local taxes 13,026 - - 13,026
Accounts - - 199,740 199,740
Other 18,573 - - 18,573
Total $ 71,069 $ 4,670 $ 199,740 $ 275,479
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C. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets for the year end was as

follows:
Beginning Decreases/ Ending
Balances Increases Reclassifications Balances
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 843,484 $ -5 - % 843,484
Total capital assets not being depreciated 843,484 - - 843,484
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land improvements 212,367 - - 212,367

Buildings and improvements 2,601,792 14,536 - 2,616,328

Vehicles and equipment 2,359,589 142,030 (76,688) 2,424,931

Infrastructure 41,421,393 267,562 - 41,688,955
Total capital assets being depreciated 46,595,141 424,128 (76,688) 46,942,581
Less accumulated depreciation

Land improvements 19,083 9,861 - 28,944

Buildings and improvements 455,339 65,086 - 520,425

Vehicles and equipment 1,503,689 156,123 (76,688) 1,583,124

Infrastructure 8,809,425 1,468,164 - 10,277,589
Total accumulated depreciation 10,787,536 1,699,234 (76,688) 12,410,082
Net capital assets being depreciated 35,807,605 (1,275,106) - 34,532,499

Total Capital Assets $ 36,651,089 % (1,275,106) % - $ 35375983
Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows:
General government $ 19,686
Public safety 182,451
Public works 1,487,236
Culture and recreation 9,861
Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense $ 1,699,234
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A summary of changes in business-type activities capital assets for the year end was as

follows:

Beginning Decreases/ Ending
Balances Increases Reclassifications Balances
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 107,417 $ - $ - 107,417
Total capital assets not being depreciated 107,417 - - 107,417
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Water and sewer system 15,957,474 - - 15,957,474

Vehicles and equipment 258,312 - - 258,312
Total capital assets being depreciated 16,215,786 - - 16,215,786
Less accumulated depreciation

Water and sewer system 3,119,347 384,432 - 3,503,779

Vehicles and equipment 235,304 6,275 - 241,579
Total accumulated depreciation 3,354,651 390,707 - 3,745,358
Net capital assets being depreciated 12,861,135 (390,707) - 12,470,428

Total Capital Assets $ 12968552 % (390,707) % - 12,577,845

Depreciation was charged to business-type activities as follows:

Water $ 385,291
Sewer 5,416
Total Business-Type Activities Depreciation Expense $ 390,707
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D. Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in the City’s total governmental long-term liabilities
for the year ended. In general, the City uses the debt service fund to liquidate governmental

long-term liabilities.

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds, notes and other
payables:
General Obligation Refunding Bonds $ 3,140,110 - (269,100) 2,871,010 278,905
Premium 101,374 - (8,311) 93,063 -
Other liabilities:
Compensated Absences 32,131 56,183 (51,541) 36,773 33,096
Total Governmental Activities $ 3,273,615 56,183 (328,952) 3,000,846 312,001
Long-term liabilities due in more than one year 2,688,845
Business-Type Activities:
Bonds, notes and other
payables:
General Obligation Refunding Bonds $ 3,179,890 - (295,900) 2,883,990 306,095
Premium 101,589 - (9,008) 92,581 -
Other liabilities:
Compensated Absences 16,201 22,112 (22,112) 16,201 14,581
Total Business-Type Activities $ 3,297,680 22,112 (327,020) 2,992,772 320,676
Long-term liabilities due in more than one year 2,672,096

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period and accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities in the
governmental funds. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but

rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.
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Long-term debt at year end was comprised of the following debt issues:

Interest Original Current
Description Rates Balance Balance
Governmental Activities:
2010 General obligation refunding bonds (41%) 2.00 - 3.5% 735,950 399,750
2011 General obligation refunding bonds (52%) 2.00 - 4.00% 2,959,825 2,471,260
Total Governmental Activities 3,695,775 2,871,010
Business-type Activities:
2010 General obligation refunding bonds (59%) 2.00 - 3.5% 1,059,050 575,250
2011 General obligation refunding bonds (48%) 2.00 - 4.00% 2,765,175 2,308,740
Total Business-Type Activities 3,824,225 2,883,990
Total Long-Term Debt
2010 General obligation refunding bonds 2.00 - 3.5% 1,795,000 975,000
2011 General obligation refunding bonds 2.00 - 4.00% 5,725,000 4,780,000
Total 7,520,000 5,755,000

44




City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

The annual requirements to amortize governmental activities debt issues outstanding at
year ending were as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year ending 2010 G.O. Bonds 2011 G.O. Bonds
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 90,200 12,720 188,705 80,118
2016 94,300 10,014 191,290 75,840
2017 69,700 7,185 193,875 71,025
2018 71,750 5,094 199,045 65,616
2019 73,800 2,583 204,215 59,567
2020 - - 211,970 53,325
2021 - - 217,140 45,802
2022 - - 224,895 36,962
2023 - - 237,820 27,707
2024 - - 155,100 19,849
2025 - - 134,420 14,294
2026 - - 100,815 10,001
2027 - - 103,400 6,170
2028 - - 108,570 2,090
Total $ 399,750  $ 37,597 % 2,471,260  $ 568,367

2010 general obligation refunding bonds issued February 11, 2010, due in annual
installments through July 15, 2019, bearing interest ranging from 2.0% to 3.5% payable
January 15 and July 15. The governmental activities portion is 41% or $735,950 of the total
$1,795,000 issue.

2011 general obligation refunding bonds issued July 13, 2011, due in annual installments
through February 15, 2028, bearing interest ranging from 2.0% to 4.0% payable February 15
and August 15. The governmental activities portion is 52% or $2,959,825 of the total
$5,725,000 issue.
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The annual requirements to amortize business-type activities debt issues outstanding at
year ending were as follows:

Business-Type Activities

Year ending 2010 G.O. Bonds 2011 G.O. Bonds
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 129,800 18,305 176,295 74,849
2016 135,700 14,411 178,710 70,852
2017 100,300 10,340 181,125 66,355
2018 103,250 7,331 185,955 61,301
2019 106,200 3,717 190,785 55,650
2020 - - 198,030 49,818
2021 - - 202,860 42,790
2022 - - 210,105 34,531
2023 - - 222,180 25,885
2024 - - 144,900 18,544
2025 - - 125,580 13,354
2026 - - 94,185 9,343
2027 - - 96,600 5,765
2028 - - 101,430 1,953
Total $ 575250  $ 54103 % 2,308,740  $ 530,989

2010 general obligation refunding bonds issued February 11, 2010, due in annual
installments through July 15, 2019, bearing interest ranging from 2.0% to 3.5% payable
January 15 and July 15. The business-type activities portion is 59% or $1,059,050 of the total
$1,795,000 issue.

2011 general obligation refunding bonds issued July 13, 2011, due in annual installments
through February 15, 2028, bearing interest ranging from 2.0% to 4.0% payable February 15
and August 15. The business-type activities portion is 48% or $2,765,175 of the total
$5,725,000 issue.
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The annual requirements to amortize total government-wide debt issues outstanding at
year ending were as follows:

Year ending 2010 G.O. Bonds 2011 G.O. Bonds Total
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 220,000 31,025 365,000 154,968 585,000 185,993
2016 230,000 24,425 370,000 146,693 600,000 171,118
2017 170,000 17,525 375,000 137,380 545,000 154,905
2018 175,000 12,425 385,000 126,918 560,000 139,343
2019 180,000 6,300 395,000 115,218 575,000 121,518
2020 - - 410,000 103,143 410,000 103,143
2021 - - 420,000 88,593 420,000 88,593
2022 - - 435,000 71,493 435,000 71,493
2023 - - 460,000 53,593 460,000 53,593
2024 - - 300,000 38,393 300,000 38,393
2025 - - 260,000 27,648 260,000 27,648
2026 - - 195,000 19,344 195,000 19,344
2027 - - 200,000 11,935 200,000 11,935
2028 - - 210,000 4,043 210,000 4,043
Total $ 975,000 % 91,700 $ 4,780,000 $ 1,09935 $ 5755000 $ 1,191,056

General obligation bonds are direct obligations of the City for which its full faith and credit
are pledged. Repayment of general obligation bonds are from taxes levied on all taxable
property located within the City. The City is not obligated in any manner for special
assessment debt.

E. Deferred Charge on Refunding

A deferred charge resulting from the issuance of the 2010 and 2011 general obligation
refunding bonds has been recorded as a deferred outflow of resources and is being
amortized to interest expense over the term of the refunded debt. Current year balances for
governmental and business-type activities totaled $79,865 and $73,721, respectively. Current
year amortization expense for governmental and business-type activities totaled $5,704 and
$5,266, respectively.
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F. Customer Deposits
The City had customer deposits of $42,000 in the general fund as of year end. The City
requires a $1,000 refundable deposit for all new home building permits. This amount will be
refunded upon completion of the project and by meeting certain criteria set by the City.

G. Interfund Transactions

The City had no interfund balances outstanding as of September 30, 2014.

Transfers between the primary government funds during the 2014 year were as follows:

Transfer in:

Volunteer Fire

Transfer out: General Department Total
General $ - $ 62,728  $ 62,728
Debt Service 1,536 - 1,536
Waste, Sewer, & Sanitation 262,922 - 262,922
Total $ 264,458 % 62,728 $ 327,186

The City records fund balance restrictions on the fund level to indicate that a portion of the
fund balance is legally restricted for a specific future use or to indicate that a portion of the
fund balance is not available for expenditures.

The following is a list of fund balances restricted/committed by the City:

Restricted Committed
Municipal court *$ 34,409 $ -
Police seizures 685 -
Debt service 93,875 -
Fire safety 159,134 -
Capital improvements - 104,180
Total $ 288,103 $ 104,180

*Restricted by enabling legislation.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City
participates along with 2,617 other entities in the Texas Municipal League’s
Intergovernmental Risk Pools. The Pool purchases commercial insurance at group rates for
participants in the Pool. The City has no additional risk or responsibility to the Pool outside
of the payment of insurance premiums. The City has not significantly reduced insurance
coverage or had settlements which exceeded coverage amounts for the past three years.

B. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from granting agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amounts of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation,
recent claim settlement trends, including frequency and amount of payouts, and other
economic and social factors.

C. Arbitrage

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage consisting of complex regulations
with respect to issuance of tax-exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage regulations
deal with the investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the
interest yield paid to bondholders. Generally, all interest paid to bondholders can be
retroactively rendered taxable if applicable rebates are not reported and paid to the Internal
Revenue Service at least every five years for applicable bond issues. Accordingly, there is
the risk that if such calculations are not performed correctly, a substantial liability to the City
could result. The City does anticipate that it will have an arbitrage liability and performs
annual calculations to estimate this potential liability. The City will also engage an arbitrage
consultant to perform the calculations in accordance with Internal Revenue Service’s rules
and regulations if indicated.

49



City of Parker, Texas

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2014

D. Pension Plans

1. Texas Municipal Retirement Systems

Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional,
joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement
System (TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. The plan
provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the options available in the
governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report
also provides detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and
assumptions used by the System. This report may be obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box
149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is available
on TMRS” website at www.TMRS.com.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options
available in the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year 2013 Plan Year 2014
Employee deposit rate 6.0% 6.0%
Matching ratio (city to 2to1 2to1
employee)
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service retirement eligibility
(expressed as age / years of 60/5, 0/25 60/5, 0/25
service)
Updated service credit 100% Repeating Transfers 100% Repeating Transfers
Annuity increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI
Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined
annually by the actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate
consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate,
which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost
contribution rate finances the portion of an active member’s projected benefit allocated
annually; the prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial
liability (asset) over the applicable period for that city. Both the normal cost and prior service
contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits,
such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases.
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The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees
and the City make contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate
in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation
that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The
annual pension cost and net pension obligation/(asset) are as follows:

Three-Year Contribution Information

2014 2013 2012
Annual Pension Cost (ARC) $ 106,166 $ 96,111 $ 99,630
Actual Contributions Made $ 106,166 % 96,111 $ 99,630
Percentage of APC Contributed 100% 100% 100%
Net Pension Obligation/Asset - - -
NPO at the End of Period  $ - % - % -

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2014 were determined as part of the December
31, 2012 and 2013 actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial
valuation, December 31, 2013, also follows:

Valuation Date 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Projected Unit Projected Unit
Credit Credit Credit
Amortization Method Level Percent of Level Percent of Level Percent of
Payroll Payroll Payroll
GASB 25 Equivalent Single 21.5 years; closed 20.5 years; closed 22.0 years; closed
Amortization Period period period period
Amortization Period for new 22 years 23 years 21 years
Gains/Losses
Asset Valuation Method 10-year Smoothed 10-year Smoothed 10-year Smoothed
Market Market Market
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return * 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%
Projected Salary Increases * Varies by age and Varies by age and Varies by age and
service service service
* Includes Inflation at 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Cost-of-Living Adjustments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
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The funded status as of December 31, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as
follows:

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/2013
Actuarial Value of Assets $ 1,947,918
Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 2,749,963

Percentage Funded 71%

Annual Covered Payroll 971,060
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $  (802,045)
(UAAL) % of Covered Payroll (82.6)%

&

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive
plan in effect at the time of each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent
with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets. The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary
Information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of benefits.

Supplemental Death Benefits Plan

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term
life insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as
the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide
group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may
terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an
ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal
to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the
12-month period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500;
this coverage is an “other postemployment benefit,” or OPEB.

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance.
The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available
to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund
retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers.
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The City’s retiree contribution rates to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2014, 2013 and
2012 are as follows:

Annual Actual
Required Contribution = Percentage of
Plan/ Contribution Made ARC
Calendar Year (Rate) (Rate) Contributed
2012 0.01% 0.01% 100.0%
2013 0.01% 0.01% 100.0%
2014 0.01% 0.01% 100.0%

The City’s contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2014, 2013 and 2012 were
$103, $97 and $97, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Service Code, Section 457. The plan permits employees to defer a portion
of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees
until retirement, termination, death, or unforeseeable emergencies.

Federal law requires all assets and income of Section 457 plans to be held in trust, custodial
accounts, or annuity contracts for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their
beneficiaries. The City's deferred compensation plan is administered by a private
corporation under contract with the City. Total participant contributions were
approximately $1,085 for the year ended September 30, 2014. The City does not contribute to
the plan.

Subsequent Events

There were no material subsequent events through, the date the financial statements were
issued.
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IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Positive
Budget Final Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Property tax $ 1,607,170 $ 1,607,170 $ 1,598,621 $ (8,549)
Sales tax 150,000 150,000 129,197 (20,803)
Franchise and local taxes 202,500 202,500 238,171 35,671
License and permits 361,000 361,000 247,676 (113,324)
Contributions and donations - - 86,503 86,503
Fines and forfeitures 165,000 165,000 94,926 (70,074)
Investment income 33,000 33,000 41,008 8,008
Other revenue 15,000 15,000 224,946 209,946
Total Revenues 2,533,670 2,533,670 2,662,084 128,414
Expenditures
Current:
General government 741,716 718,316 507,337 210,979
Police department 785,052 785,052 722,571 62,481
Municipal court 171,256 171,256 114,680 56,576
Fire department 239,250 262,650 245,727 16,923
Building and code enforcement 96,682 96,682 91,181 5,501
Parks and recreation 6,900 6,900 1,860 5,040
Public works 554,397 554,397 464,827 89,570
City property 62,700 62,700 57,526 5174
Capital outlay 10,100 10,100 - 10,100
Total Expenditures 2,668,053 2,668,053 2,205,709 462,344
Revenues Over (Under) (134,383) (134,383) 456,375 590,758
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out - - 264,458 264,458
Transfers in - - (62,728) (62,728)
Total Other Financing Sources - - 201,730 201,730
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (134,383) % (134,383) 658,105 $ 792,488
Beginning fund balance 3,831,299
Ending Fund Balance $ 4,489,404

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
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City of Parker, Texas

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS-
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

September 30, 2014

The City's annual covered payroll and pension costs are actuarially valued on a calendar year basis. Because

the City makes all the annually required contributions, no net pension obligation (NPO) exists. The

information presented below represents the City's Schedule of Funding Progress.

Actuarial Valuation Date
Actuarial Value of Assets
Actuarial Accrued Liability
Percentage Funded
Unfunded Actuarial

Accrued Liability
Annual Covered Payroll
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability

(UAAL) % of Covered Payroll
Net Pension Obligation (NPO)

at the Beginning of Period
Annual Req. Contrib. (ARC)
Contributions Made

NPO at the End of Period

12/31/2013 12/31/2012 12/31/2011
$ 1,947,918 $ 1,792,803 $ 1,676,155
$ 2,749,963 $ 2,390,209 $ 2,267,887
70.8% 75.0% 73.9%
$ 802,045 $ 597,406 $ 591,732
$ 971,060 $ 968,690 $ 983,609
82.6% 61.7% 60.2%
$ - $ - $ -
$ 106,166 $ 96,111 $ 99,630
$ 106,166 $ 96,111 $ 99,630
$ - $ - $ -
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Budget Account Code: Meeting Date:  pecember 16, 2014
Depariment/
Budgeted Amount: Requestor: City Administrator Flanigan
Fund Balance-before Prepared by: J Shepherd
expenditure:
Estimated Cost: Date Prepared:  12/11/2014
S Planning and Zoning Meeting minutes for 9/18/2014
Exhibits: Updated maps
AGENDA SUBJECT

PUBLIC HEARING, CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON
ORDINANCE 721 AMENDING THE CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. [FLANIGAN]

SUMMARY

Open Public Hearing at p.m.
Take comments

Close Public Hearing at p.m.

Council discussion

POSSIBLE ACTION

Approve, Deny or Table

Approved by -

Department Head: Date:
City Attorney: Date:

Jim Shepherd by email
. )

Thu 12/11/2014 3:05 PM

/ 2;/12_/17

L4

City Administrator: % Date:
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MINUTES
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING
SEPTEMBER 18, 2014

The Plannlng and Zonmg Commission met on the above date Chalrperson Wﬂght
called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.

Commissioners Present:
X  Chairperson Wright Commissioner Raney
X Commissioner Sutaria X Commissioner Lozano

X  Commissioner Stanislav

Alternate Jeang X Alernate Cassavechia
x  Altemnate Leamy

Altemate Cassavechla was appointed a voting member.

Staff/Others Present
X  City Administrator Flanigan X City Secretary Smith
X  Counciimember Pettle X Councilmember Stone

INDIVIDUALEONSIBE

1. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON MEETING MINUTES
FOR JANUARY 23, 2014.

Amendment: Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Wright.

Page 10f 4
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MOTION: Commissioner Stanislav moved to approve the minutes as written.
Commissioner Lozano seconded with Commissioners Cassavechia, Wright, Lozano,
Sutaria and Stanislav voting for. Motion carried 5-0.

2. PUBLIC HEARING- THE PURPOSE OF THIS HEARING WILL BE TO CONSIDER
REVISIONS TO THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE PARKER
MUNICIPAL CODE. THE PROPOSED REVISIONS ARE TO CITY MAPS; ZONING
MAP, FUTURE LAND USE PLAN, THOROUGHFARE PLAN, ANNEXATION MAP,
TRAILS MAP AND WATER MASTER PLAN MAP.

The Comprehensive Plan Review Committee consisting of City Administrator Flanigan,
Mayor Pro Tern Levine, Councilmember Stone and P&Z Chairperson Wright conducted
a citizen survey and by an overwhelming majority any changes to the Comprehensive
Plan were opposed. The Committee agreed to recommend up-dating all the maps,
rename a few and amend the thoroughfare map by adding new street classifications.

Chairperson Wright opened the public hearing at 7:10 p.m.
Joe Cordina, 4302 Boulder opposed any changes to the plan.
Michael Booth, 4010 Ann's Lane opposed any changes to the plan.

Tom Shanley, 4805 Dillehay is unhappy with the development of indoor batting cages
being built on the property next to his in the extra-territorial jurisdiction.

Chairperson Wright closed the public hearing at 7:22 p.m.

3. CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REVISIONS TO THE
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE CITY MAPS; ZONING MAP, FUTURE

LAND USE PLAN, THOROUGHFARE MAP, ANNEXATION MAP, TRAILS MAP AND
WATER MASTER PLAN MAP.

The Commission discussed each map individually and voted.

The Land Use Map has been updated to reflect the current zoning and a change was
proposed to rename of the map to “Planning Map". This map is the guide for the fu-
ture development of the City. (Exhibit A)

Commissioner Stanislav requested the Commission look at a new zoning classifica-
tion for heritage areas in the City such as Dublin Road and Sycamore Road that were
developed before Parker was incorporated. Chairperson Wright recommended this be
placed on a future agenda.

MOTION: Commissioner Cassavechia moved to recommend approval to the City
Council of the updated Land Use Map and the proposed name change to "Planning
Map". Commissioner Lozano seconded with Commissioners Cassavechia, Wright,

Page 2 of 4
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Lozano and Sutaria voting for. Commissioner Stanislav opposed. Motion carried 4-
1.

The Zoning Map shows the current zoning of properties and the properties that are in
the City's ETJ. (Exhibit B}

MOTION: Commissioner Sutaria moved to recommend to Council approval of the
updated Zoning Map as presented. Commissioner Cassavechia seconded with
Commissioners Cassavechia, Wright, Lozano, Sutaria and Stanistav voting for. Mo-
tion carried 5-0.

The Ordinance Map lists all property annexations and ordinance numbers. It is rec-
ommended to change the map's name to "Annexation Map* and to approve the up-
dates. (Exhibit C)

MOTION: Commissioner Lozano moved to recommend to Council approvat of the
updated Ordinance Map as presented with the name changed to Annexation Map.
Commissioner Sutaria seconded with Commissioners Cassavechia, Wright, Lozano,
Sutaria and Stanislav voting for. Motion carried 5-0.

The Trail Master Plan provides a guide for future development of parks and trails.
This plan is an addition to the Comprehensive Plan. (Exhibit D)

MOTION: Commissioner Stanislav moved to recommend approval of the Trail Mas-
ter Plan. Commissioner Cassavechia seconded with Commissioners Cassavechia,
Wiright, Lozano, Sutaria and Stanislav voting for. Motion carried 5-0.

The Water Distribution Plan Map shows where major water lines are required in fu-
ture developments. (Exhibit E)

MOTION: Commissioner Lozano moved to recommend approval of the Water Distri-
bution Plan Map. Commissioner Stanisiav seconded with Commissioners Cassa-
vechia, Wright, Lozano, Sutaria and Stanislav voting for. Motion carried 5-0.

City Administrator Flanigan provided the Commission with a letter from developer
Steve Saliman regarding the Thoroughfare Plan. (Exhibit F)

The current road specifications and design was reviewed. (Exhibit G) At the January
23, 2014 meeting P&Z moved to make a recommendation to Council to amend the
subdivision regulations by replacing the existing residential street designs with the
three street designs presented by City Engineer John Birkhoff. (Exhibit H) adding the
option of using an asphalt roadway structure with the appropriate engineering
controls to insure a similar lifespan as concrete.

City Administrator Flanigan reviewed the proposed changes to the Thoroughfare
Plan. (Exhibit 1) The City Engineer stated a four-lane divided road is only needed
when there will be at least 15,000 cars traveling the road per day. Curtis Road is
currently planned for a four-lane divided road; however, the road comes to a dead-
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end at the City of Lucas city limits. After review by the City Engineer it has been
recommended to change Curtis Road to a standard residential street. Ancther
recornmended change is the north south thoroughfare from Parker Road to
Chaparral. This section is planned for a four-lane divided too and once the property is
developed there will not be 15,000 cars traveling it per day. It is recommended to
change it to a suburban collector, which is wider than a standard residential street to
allow police and fire service through the City safely.

MOTION: Commissioner Lozano moved to recommend approval fo Council on
changes to the thoroughfare plan (Exhibit I); 1) changing the east section of Curtis
Road to a standard residential street, and 2) change the north south connection from
Parker Road to Chaparral to a suburban collector that is wider than a standard
residential street. Commissioner Stanislav seconded with Commissioners
Cassavechia, Wright, Lozano, Sutaria and Stanislav voting for. Motion carried 5-0.

MOTION: Commissioner Cassavechia moved to recommend approval to Council of
adding three proposed residential street designs (Exhibit ). Commissioner Lozano
seconded with Commissioners Cassavechia, Wright, Lozano, Sutaria and Stanislav
voting for. Motion carried 5-0.

B R T e SRR O P B RERE,

4. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
¢ Heritage Zoning classification
» Parker Road Estates Phase 2 Preliminary Plat
o Kings Crossing Phase 2 Preliminary Plat

5. ADJOURN
Chairperson Wright adjourned at 8:41 p.m.

Minutes Approved on day of , 2014,

Chairman Russell Wright
Attest:

Commission Secretary Stanislav

Prepared by City Secretary Carrie L. Smith
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Budget Account Code: Meeting Date:  pecember 16, 2014
Department/
Budgeted Amount; Requestor;
Fund Balance-before Prepared by: Jim Shepherd
expenditure:
Estimated Cost: Date Prepared:  42/8/2014
oo 1} Annexation Application
Exhibits: 2) Proposed Schedule
3} Proposed Resolution

AGENDA SUBJECT

CONSIDERATION AND/OR ANY APPROPRIATE ACTION ON AN ANNEXATION
REQUEST AND RESOLUTION 2014-466 APPROVING A SCHEDULE FOR PUBLIC
HEARINGS FOR KINGS CROSSING PHASE 2. [FLANIGAN]

SUMMARY

POSSIBLE ACTION

Approve, Table or Deny

_Inter — Office Use -
Approved by:

Department Head/
Requestor:

Date:

City Attomey: Jim Shepherd by email Date: | Thu 12/11/2014 3:05[PM

City Administrator: | _(/ e e IZA 'z./ b
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ZONING BOUNDARY CHANGE APPLICATION FORM
ANNEXATION REQUEST FORM

1. Requesfing; Permanent Zoning
Re-Zoning (See Note*)
Annexation X

*Note: If requesting re-zoning, please attach a letter stating nature of re-zoning request;
i.e. state present zoning and type of zoning change requested.

4925 Greenville Avenue, Suite 1020

Company Address:

Dallas, Texas 75206

Company Phone Number: 214-368=0238, Ext 223

Company Email: N/A .

Contact Name: Stephen Sallman

Contact Phone Number: 214-542-6137

Contact Email: ssallman@warnergroup.com

2. Description and Location of Property:

a. Survey and abstract: "See Attached Exhibit A"
b. Lot and block: N/A

¢. Total number of acres: = 56.5062

d. Location further described; Lewis Lane, Parker ETJ

3. Attach 8 copies of the prelimin: lat or survey that contains;

a. North point, scale, and date

b. Name and address of:

i. Applicant
ii. Engineer or surveyor responsible for survey of plat

¢. Survey and abstract with tract designation

d. Location of major and/or secondary thoroughfares located with or adjacent to the
property
Location of existing or platted streets within and adjacent to the existing property
Location of all existing rights of way, utility, and/or drainage easements

o

4. Fees (Non-Refundable): See Attached Fee Schedule

5700 E PARKER ROAD - PARKER, TEXAS 75002 - PHONE (972) 442-6811 - FAX

| Ut -Comn

(972) 442-2894

AALIUN AL ATION FORM 0TS0 g0

Jeveippment-]




Page 2
All fees are due and payable at the time of application. No hearing will be scheduled nor will
any reviews be made until payment of required filing fees has been accomplished. Fees are

. non-refindable regardless of outcome of request.

All the requirements and fees of this application are submitted to the City of Parker requesting a
hearing date for a Public Hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission and/or the City
Council as may be required. Hearing dates will be scheduled in accordance with provisions of
the City of Parker’s Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance.

Applicant: W——‘Z MM—' Date: /7 / a 57 / f‘/

Stephen L. Sallman
Accepted: Date:

5700 E PARKER ROAD - PARKER, TEXAS 75002 - PHONE (972) 442

=S MmOt

-6811 - FAX (972) 442-2394

JUNDAR A ION.-FORM 201 DOTS dos




EXHIBIT "A"

4870—3Asur | L R . .

BEING a troct of lond slituated in the Ann Hurt Survey, Abstract No. 428, Gellin County, Texas, the subject tract
being o porilon of that deecribed 356 acres tract of land con to the Bedsll Fomlly Limited Partnership, o
Texas limited portnereship, occording to the Warranty Dead ed in Collin County Clerk File Number
2000-0050958. of the Land Records Of Collin County Texas (LRCCT), the subjact tract being more partioularly
described as follows;

BEGINNING at the southwest comer of sold Bedell 356 ccre tract, and the northwest comer of a 48.35 acra tract
of land conveyed to Young Daan Homestesd, Lid. aceording to the warranty desd recorded n County Clerk File
Number 20020088655 (LRCCT), sald Beginning further being lecated on the esst line of Parker Loke
Estates Fhose 3-B, aon addition to the City Of Parker occording to thé Final Plot recorded in Cabinet P, Page 838
{LRCCT), a 1/2" iron pin with o cop stamped "Petitt” found at-corrier, from which a 1/2" iron pin found ot the
southeaat comer of Lot 31, Block A of scld Parker Lake Estotes Phaes 3~B beors $ 00 24 48" E — 37.45 feel;

THENCE, N 00" 24' 46" W, 6 long the west lina of sold Bedell tract ond the ‘aast line of ecld Parker Lake Estates
Phese 3-B, a distance of 737.23 feet to a 1/2" fron pin with o oop stamped Tipton Eng, Inc. zet at comer;

THENCE, § 72° 49" 24" E, o distancs of 326.50 feet;
THENCE, S 21° 55° 46" W, o distance of 41.99 fest;

THENCE, § 79° 17 44" E, o distance of 217,98 feet;
THENGE, N 78° 55 48" E, o distance of 314,06 feet:
THENCE, N 80" 33' 57° E, o distance of 232.28 fest;
THENCE, N 00 26" 03" W, « distonce of 288.92 faet;
THENCE, N 89" 35 57°.E, q distance of 67.72 fest;

THENCE, around ¢ tungent curve to the right having o centrol ongle of 08° 06" 45", a rodius of 298.92 fast
and o chord of S 86" 22' 41" € — 42.20 feet, an are distonce of 42,32 fest;

THENCE, N 07" 40 42° E, a distonce of 272.22 fest;
THENCE, § 77 03 33" E, @ distunce of 33.63 feak;

THENGE, § 57" 41" 25° E, o distarice of 330.50 foet;
THENCE, N 32" 18" 35" E, o distance of 313.42 feet

THENGE, around’ a non—tangent curve to the right hoving o central angle of 22''42" 347, o rodius of 325.00 feet,
and a chord of § 44" 24' 50" £, o distence of 127.87 fest; .

THENCE, § 33 03’ 33" E, a distance of 120.47 fest;

THENCE, N 66" 56' 27" E, o distonce of 248.92 feet;

THENGE, S 47" 0" 53" E, o distancs of 51.55 feet; "
THENCE, N 71° §5' 68" E, o distance of 187.91 fest; '

THENCE, N. 89" 22' 01" E, a distoncs of 376.80 feat to a point on the sust line of sald Bedell 358 acre tract,
sald point being in Lewis Lans, an undedlcated portion of public right—of~way. a PK noll est in rock road at
corner, from which the most westerly northiwest corner of o 48.6: acre tract of lond conveyed 1o Lewls Band
Partners, Lid. secording o the Warranty Deed with Vendors Llen recorded In County Clerk Flle Number
2006—001651500 {LRCCT) bears N 05" 18" 28" E, a distonce of 236,08 feet;

THENCE, S 00" 38' 13" E, dlong the sold Bedsll 358 aore tract east line and generolly dlong Lewia Lane, o
distance of 1221.38 feet {o the southeost comer of sald Bedel! 3566 acre truct, o 'l/;" fron pin with a cop
stamped "Petitt” found at comer, from maid corner the southwest ¢orner of the previoudly mentioned Lewis Band
Partners, Ltd.. 48,6223 acre tract bears N 88° 37° 48" E, a distance of 7.78 feet;

THENCE, S 88" 33" 49" W, dlong the south line of sakd Bedell 358 ocre tract and the north line of a 13.75 core
tract of Jand and the previcusly mentloned 49.35 aere tract of land conveyed to Young Dean Homestend, Lid. by
the wurrunay desd racorded in County Clerk Flle Number 2002-0088855 (LRCCT), o distance of 2840,04 feet to
the Pluce Of Beginning with the subject tract contalning 2,461,408 Squore Fest or 5B.5082 Acres of Land.




12/12/14

12/16/14

12/19/14

1/2/15

1/6/15

1/9/15

1/16/15

1/20/15

1/30/15

2/3/15

ANNEXATION SCHEDULE
56.5062 Acres — Kings Crossing (Parker Bedell Farms, Ltd.)
2014-2015

Post notice at City Hall of 12/16/14 meeting of City Council

/_’-.' :

Pass Resolution setting 2 Public Hearings before the city council on Annexatlon for 1/6/ 15 and
1/20/15 Yy % .

' y . ‘“4 _».la"
Notice of first Annexation Public Hearing on 1/6/15 published iﬂ'newspappr prior to this date

‘ b ,-’.“/‘=. 4

{or before) Post notice at City Hall of 1/6/15 mecting of City Council \"‘{; A
First Annexation hearing before City Council v o )

A
Notice of second Annexation Public Hearing on 1/20/15 published in newspaper
& -
(or before) Post notice at City Hall of 1/20/15 meeting of City Council

™ ;
Second Annexation hearing before City Council / '

A ] i
z:’ ¥
e ai
Nt .
eI :

(or before) Post notice at City Hall of 2/3/15 meeting of City Council for annexation vote

£ -
City Council votes on Annexation
v

P4

/'-

| This schedule requires two published notices, as it presumes the council meetings will only occur

on the first and third Tuesdays. In the event the council were to decide to have two council
meetings within 10 days, the published notice could be reduced to one, and the overall time
schedule reduced.

Annexation Schedule Page 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2014- 466
(56.5062 Acres — Kings Crossing (Parker Bedell Farms, Ltd.)

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PARKER;’
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS RECEIVING AN ANNEXATION PETITION
FROM PARKER BEDELL FARMS, LTD. FOR KINGS CROSSING,

PHASE 2, AND SETTING TWO PUBLIC HEARINGS REGARDING THE
PROPOSED ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 56.5062 ACRES OF ;

LAND IN THE ANN HURT SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 428, COLLIN' %e,
COUNTY, TEXAS. i @

e

WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 43 of the Texas Loca ‘Géve:rnment Code a
petition for annexation of land described herein was submitted o 'the City; and i e

Vil i

WHEREAS, the City of Parker believes that the teceipt and- rev1ew of ‘this annexation

petition is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Parker, and the owners and residents of

the area seeking the annexation; and ﬁ

WHEREAS, the City of Parker w;lll ‘hold tw0\ publlc hea:rmgs on the proposed
annexation, on such dates as will be determined by vote of the: Clty Council,
e Y
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT. RESQLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF PARKER, COLLIN C@UNTY, TEXAS ASFE OLLOWS
P e

THE ANNEXATION: PETITION submitted by Parker Bedell Farms, Ltd. to the
City of Parker, Collin County, Texas, requestlng annexation of approximately 56.5062 acres of
land in the Ann Hurt survey, abstraqt no. 428, Collin County, Texas, which is further described
in the metes and bounds descnptlon n the attached Exhibit “A” incorporated herein for all
purposes, is hereby; accepted for cons1derat10n for annexation by the City of Parker.

b Y
Public hearmgs to be held in:accordance with Texas Local Government Code 43.052, are
to be scheduled for- January 6, 2015 and January 20, 2015. City staff shall take all necessary
steps for pubhcatlon of: these hearings in accordance with State law.
m U i
ULY/RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Parker, Collin County, Texas on
1-6th day of December, 2015.

&Lé& APPROVED:

Z Marshall, Mayor

RESOLUTION NO. 466
(Parker Bedell Farms, Ltd, Phase 2 -56.5062 Acres) Page 1
Last Saved by Carrie Smithl2/11/2014 8:20 AM



ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carrie Smith, City Secretary James E. Shepherd, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-466
(Parker Bedell Farms, Ltd, Phase 2 -56.5062 Acres) Page 2
Last Saved by Carrie Smithl2/11/2014 8:20 AM
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